
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Joint Committee on  
Food Equipment Meeting 

 
August 21 & 22, 2019 

1:00 – 5:00pm & 8:00 - 11:30 am (EDT) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Vaughn Room 
NSF Headquarters 

789 N. Dixboro Road 
Ann Arbor, MI  48105 

 
To join via Computer:  
 
https://bluejeans.com
/6856273553 
 

To join via phone : 
1)  Dial: 

+1.408.740.7256 (United States) 
+1.888.240.2560 (US Toll Free) 
+1.408.317.9253 (Alternate number) 

2)  Enter Conference ID : 6856273553 followed by # 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This meeting package is part of the NSF 
Standards process and is for NSF 
Committee activity only.  The materials 
contained in this package shall not be 
reproduced, circulated, or quoted, in 
whole or in part, outside of NSF 
Committee activities except with prior 
approval of NSF. 



 
NSF International 

 

 
 

789 N. Dixboro Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48105-9723 USA 
1-800-NSF-MARK    734-769-8010 

www.nsf.org 
 

 
NSF Food Equipment Joint Committee Meeting 

21 August 2019 – Vaughn Room 
 

Rules of Order 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Robert’s Rules of Order (11th Edition): 
 

Report → Motion → Motion 2nd →  
 

Discussion → Vote 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

An Issue Paper is used to initiate an action such as 
revisions to a food equipment standard. Specific 
changes to the standard may be included.   
 
An Information Paper is used to communicate 
information, research or other news that would be 
of interest to the Food Equipment Joint Committee. 
An Information Paper is a non-action initiating 
document. 



Distributed on August 12, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB A 
• Agenda 
• 2018 Meeting Summary 
• Membership 
• Celebrating 75 Years 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Distributed on August 12, 2018 

Joint Committee on Food Equipment Meeting 
Wednesday & Thursday, August 21 & 22, 2019 

1:00 – 5:00pm & 8:00 - 11:30 am (EDT) 

Vaughn Room 
NSF Headquarters 

789 N. Dixboro Road 
Ann Arbor, MI  48105 

To join via Computer:  
 
https://bluejeans.com
/6856273553 
 

To join via phone : 
1)  Dial: 

+1.408.740.7256 (United States) 
+1.888.240.2560 (US Toll Free) 
+1.408.317.9253 (Alternate number) 

2)  Enter Conference ID : 6856273553 followed by # 
 

Supplemental pre-meetings 
Aug 21 
9:00 -
10:30  

  Task Group Chair Meeting Snyder Room Bluejeans 

Aug 21 
10:30 - 
12:00 

  Public Agency Forum Innovation 
Room Bluejeans 

          
Lunch     12:00 - 1:00 

          
Joint Committee Meeting 

Time Tab Item Speaker Action/Info 

Aug 21 
1:00 - 
1:15 

Tab A 

Welcome M.Perez Info 

Antitrust Statement/Roll Call - Sign in Sheet A.Rose Info/Action 
Rules of order and meeting conduct M.Perez Info 
Review and acceptance of Agenda M.Perez Info/Action 
Review and acceptance of August 22-23, 2018 Meeting 
Summary M.Perez Info/Action 

Video Training Resources on the NOW A.Rose Info 

JC Membership Roster - Member Recognition, Balance 
Discussion, Recognition to members voting on every ballot 
over the previous year, New Member Application 

M.Perez Info 

Celebrating 75 years T.Chestnut Info 
Existing Business and Task Group Updates 

1:15 - 
1:20 Tab C 2018 Action Items, and List of Issue Papers Received and 

Assigned since Previous Meeting M.Perez Info 

Task Group Updates 

1:20 - 
1:50 

Tab 
D1 

Standard 2 - Food Equipment J.Brady Info 
Food Shields P.Matus Info 
Figures and Diagrams J.Scanlon Info 



Distributed on August 12, 2018 

          
1:50 - 
2:05 

Tab 
D2 Standard 3 - Commercial Warewashing Equipment J.Hipp Info 

          
2:05 - 
2:20 

Tab 
D3 

Standard 4 - Commercial Cooking, Rethermalization and 
Powered Hot Food Holding, and Transport Equipment J.Brania Info 

          
2:20 - 
2:40 

Tab 
D4 

Standard 7 - Commercial refrigerators  
and freezers T.Gagliardi Info 

          
2:40 - 
3:00 

Tab 
D5 Standard 12 - Automatic Ice Making Equipment B.Glynn Info 

          
Break     3:00 - 3:15 

          

3:15 - 
4:00   

Presentation - How the CDC Vessel Sanitation Program, drives 
food equipment requirements in a marine, cruise ship, 
environment 

L.Rodriguez Info 

          
4:00 - 
4:20 

Tab 
D6 Standard 25 - Vending machines for food and beverages D.Negandhi Info 

          
4:20 - 
4:40 

Tab 
D7 Standard 51 - Food equipment materials B.Sickles Info 

          
4:40 - 
4:45 

Tab 
D8 TG reports that didn't hold any teleconferences, no action   Info 

          
Reception at The Old German 7:30 pm 

          
Aug 22 
8:00 - 
8:45 

  Presentation - NAFEM C.Souhrada Info 

New Business 

 8:45 - 
9:40 

Tab 
F1 Issue Paper FE-2019-05 - Section 5.4 Cover Requirements M.Perez Info/Action 

Tab 
F2 

Issue Paper FE-2019-06 - Slotted Fasteners in Marine 
Equipment L.Rodriguez Info/Action 

Tab 
F3 Issue Paper FE-2019-08 - NOTE in 5.1.4 R.Bergamini Info/Action 

Tab 
F4 

Issue Paper FE-2019-09 - Definition for Potentially Hazardous 
Foods D.Melaragno Info/Action 

          
Break     9:40 - 9:55 

          
9:55 - 
11:15 

Tab 
F5 Issue Paper FE-2019-10 - Definition for Sheets D.Melaragno Info/Action 



Distributed on August 12, 2018 

Tab 
F6 Issue Paper FE-2019-11 - Casters J.Hall Info/Action 

Tab 
F7 Information Paper - Surface Cleanability D.Negandhi Info 

Tab 
F8 Information Paper - Plastic Cutting Boards J.Veden Info 

          
11:15 - 
11:30 

Tab H Other New Business     
Tab I Meeting Wrap-Up and Adjournment M.Perez Info/Action 

          
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 1 of 24 
 

Opening Remarks 
M.Perez welcomed the Joint Committee (JC) members and observers and thanked them for their 
contributions. Following opening remarks, A.Rose conducted roll call. Once the attendance was 
recorded A.Rose read the NSF Antitrust Statement and turned the meeting over to the Chair. 
Twenty-seven of the 33 voting members (82%) were present representing a quorum. Once 
quorum was established, the meeting was called to order at 1:00 pm. 
 
M.Perez reviewed Robert’s Rules of Order and Meeting Conduct emphasizing group participation 
and allowing everyone to be heard. Only voting members may make a motion, second a motion 
and vote on a motion. However all attendees may participate in a discussion. There were no 
questions at the end of his discussion.  
 
 
 
Tab A – Agenda, 2017 Meeting summary and Review of Membership 
 
Review of August 23-24, 2017 Meeting Summary 
M.Perez reviewed the August 23-24, 2017 Meeting Summary and opened the floor for suggested 
changes. There were none so he called for a motion: 
 

Motion, J.Scanlon:  To accept the August 23-24, 2017 Meeting Summary 
Second:    M.Nashan  
Further discussion:   None 
Vote:  Twenty-seven in favor, Zero Opposed, Zero Abstain 
Motion:    Carries 

 
 
 
Review of Agenda 
M.Perez reviewed the agenda for this meeting and opened the floor for suggested changes. There 
were none so Michael called for a motion: 
 

Motion by T.Johnson:  To accept the agenda for this year’s meeting 
Second:    R.Brandt 
Further discussion:  J.Brady indicated he and B.Glynn have a pending new Issue 

Paper, which has yet to be submitted. Time permitting, he’d 
like to submit this issue document for consideration. B.Glynn 
indicated the issue paper will be sent to A.Rose today. 

Vote:  Twenty-seven in favor, Zero opposed, Zero Abstain 
Motion:    Carries 
 

 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 2 of 24 
 

Review of Membership 
M.Perez acknowledged the new JCFE members since the previous meeting, S.Dye (PUBLIC 
HEALTH/REGULATORY) and T.Webb (USER). He then highlighted the increased emphasis 
placed on member participation, detailing the improved voting record, and the fact there were 17 
members with a perfect 100% participation with respect to the 15 approval ballots issues since 
the previous meeting.  
 
He added that the list of these individuals published in the meeting packet was missing 2 
members, S.Burton-Zick and S.Schaefer, and we wants the record to show they too had perfect 
voting records. 
 
He further acknowledged that the new members S.Dye and T.Webb also have perfect voting 
records although they were not eligible for the entire 15 ballots since the previous meeting. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any further comments; there were none 
 
 
 
Tab B – JC 101 
M.Perez indicated the first presentation was entitled JC 101, and introduced J.Evans, the Director 
of NSF Standards and presenter of the material. J.Evans thanked the Chair and members, and 
conducted the presentation: 
 

Stds process review_Food JC 8-22-18.pptx 
 
Upon completion, M.Perez thanked J.Evans and opened the floor for comments and questions. 
 
Bill asked if the presentation will be made available, and J.Evans acknowledged it would be. Sara 
asked for a bit more detail about what defines an observer on the JC, and J.Evans explained the 
differences, emphasizing that an observer can participating in nearly everything the same way, 
but does not have the privilege or responsibility of voting on approval ballots. She further 
explained that observers on the JC can be voting members on Task Groups (TG), and are allowed 
to express opinions in the same open forum. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any further comments; there were none 
 
 
Tab C – 2017 Action Items, and List of Issue Papers Received and Assigned since previous 
meeting 
 
M Perez reported that 7 of the 8 action items from the 2017 JCFE meeting are complete: 
 
 
 
 
 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44804/Stds%20process%20review_Food%20JC%208-22-18.pptx


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 3 of 24 
 

2017 JCFE MEETING ACTION ITEMS: 
 

Standard 2 
The JC recommends issue paper FE-2017-12 – Update regarding Dinnerware be sent to Standard 2 TG, 
and put the withdrawal of Standard 36 on hold until FE-2017-12 is resolved. 
 
Complete per TG meetings on 2017-10-03 & 2018-01-23, and J.Brady 2018-02-05 email 
 

Standard 4 
The JC recommends the Standard 4 TG Chair reach out to the Issue Proponent for clarification (FE2016-
16 – Velocity Location Measurement). 
 
Complete 2018-02-12 
 

Standard 37 
The JC recommends item one on Issue Paper FE-2017-07 – Location of Definitions be accepted, and the 
Chair will exercise prerogative and send this directly to approval ballot once the documents are prepared. 
 
Issue not urgent and will be addressed during the 5 year publication cycle 
 

Standard 6 
The JC recommends the Issue Proponent rewrite FE-2017-09 as discussed during this meeting and send 
revised language to the Dispensing Equipment TG for discussion 
 
Complete; FE-2017-14 received 2017-08-28 
 

Standard 8 
The JC recommends to send proposed language for Issue Paper FE-2017-11 directly to JC Approval Ballot 
 
Complete; published in July 2018 
 

Standard 7 
The JC recommends to send proposed language for Issue Paper FE-2017-13 to the Standard 7 TG for 
discussion  
 
Sent to TG, introduced during October 17 Teleconference; Discussion underway 
 

Standard 3 
The JC recommends to send Information Paper regarding Cutlery Cleaning to the Standard 3 TG for 
discussion  
 
Complete; sent to TG on 2017-08-24 
 

New Information Paper – Marking on Solid Surfacing 
The JC recommends that NSF consider modifying the certification policy to include this type of information. 
 
Possible modification of certification policy pending the adoption of new language for solid surfacing in 
Standards 51 and 170 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 4 of 24 
 

M.Perez then presented the list of issue papers received & assigned since August 2017, as well 
as a list of Standards published since that same time.  
 
Issue Papers Received and Assigned Since 2017 JCFE Meeting 
 
 
Issue Document/Title TG Assigned 
FE-2017-14 – Increase Lockout Time Standard 6 
FE-2017-15 – Section 5.34.4.4, Heads of 
Fasteners 

Standard 8 

FE-2017-16 – Sealant Cross Reference Fix Standard 2 
FE-2018-01 – Clarity to Section 5.2.1.3 Standard 2 
FE-2018-02 – Backflow Prevention Boilerplate Standard 2 
FE-2018-03 – Organic Coatings, Heated Splash 
Zones A 

Standard 51 

FE-2018-04 – Organic Coatings, Heated Splash 
Zones B 

Standard 51 

FE-2018-06 – Backflow Prevention Boilerplate Standard 4 
 
Yellow Highlights indicate balloted, completed and published language 
 
 
 
Standards Published Since 2017 JCFE Meeting 
 
2 – Food Equipment 
8 – Commercial Powered Food Preparation Equipment 
51 – Food Equipment Materials 
170 – Glossary of Food Equipment Terminology 
 
36 – Dinnerware – Withdrawn shortly after language published in Standard 
2. Current Standard 36 Certifications valid through 2018 
 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any further comments; there were none 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 5 of 24 
 

Tab D – Task Group Updates 
 
Tab D1 – Standard 2 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
J.Brady is the TG chair, confirming the TG met 3 times since the 2017 JC F2F (face-to-face 
meeting). He detailed the 4 issues discussed indicating all were completed and published. 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments; there were none. 
 
 
Tab D2 – Standard 3 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
J.Hipp is the TG chair, confirming the TG met 2 times since the 2017 JC F2F. He detailed the 
timing of the 4 open issues, and M.Perez opened the floor for comments. 
 
D.Melaragno asked for additional information regarding the rinseability test, and J.Hipp explained 
in greater detail the history of the issue, and that it’s all about developing a method for measuring 
high efficiency, low water flow machines. He finished by saying the group will have to look at all 
the listed models with lower water flow, and develop an approach for evaluating these once the 
method is finalized, so as not to exclude any machines unnecessarily. 
 
J.Leonard asked if there are any plans to look at the cutlery cleaning system again in the future 
now that the issue paper has been withdrawn. A.Rose said this is unknown, explaining the 
challenges that the manufacturer is having with how the food code is written. Said that he had 
spoken with the Issue Proponent recently and although the company hasn’t given up, they need 
to sort out a game plan first. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any other comments; there were none. 
 
 
 
 
Tab D3 – Standard 4 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
J.Brania is the TG chair, confirming the TG met 2 times since the 2017 JC F2F and briefly went 
over the open issues. M.Perez opened the floor for comments. 
 
M.Perez asked how the certification of microwaves is accomplished, and if there is any conflict 
now that J.Brania has withdrawn the issue paper about enclosed spaces. M.Kohler indicated that 
there is no conflict as the current performance requirements are followed and if the microwaves 
in question meet the current standard, then enclosed spaces do not conflict. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any other comments; there were none. 
 
 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 6 of 24 
 

Tab D4 – Standards 6 and 18 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
R.Brandt is the TG chair, confirming the TG met 2 times since the 2017 JC F2F, and provided a 
brief update regarding the 3 issues discussed. A.Rose added that Standard 6 is due for 
republication by the end of December 2018. M.Perez opened the floor for comments. 
 
T.Johnson asked M.Kohler to further explain what needs to be changed with the performance 
test. M.Kohler confirmed that Kevin Smith (CPHC Member) asked NSF to look into whether the 
current microbiological test method would be appropriate for the test. M.Kohler confirmed with the 
lab that indeed the methodology was acceptable for the newly proposed 92 days. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any other comments; there were none. 
 
 
Tab D5 – Standard 7 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
T.Gagliardi is the TG chair, confirming the TG met just 1 time since the 2017 JC F2F because the 
Standard had recently been published and the group decided to focus efforts elsewhere. He 
confirmed the TG is scheduled to meet next on September 25, and provided a brief summary of 
the open issues. 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments; there were none. 
 
 
 
Tab D6 – Standard 12 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
M.Perez is the new TG chair and thanked S.Burton-Zick for her efforts over the last couple years 
as acting TG chair. He confirmed the group met 2 times since the 2017 JC F2F, and provided a 
brief update regarding the 2 open issues. 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments; there were none. 
 
 
 
Tab D7 – Standard 25 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
D.Negandhi is the TG chair, confirming the group met 1 time since the 2017 JC F2F, and 
explained the one open issue facing the TG, specifically to synchronize the NAMA vending 
machine standard with NSF 25 so NAMA standards can be retired. 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments and there was none, so he asked if it has been decided 
to ballot each section independently or all at once. D.Negandhi confirmed that each section sent 
to straw ballot thus far has each section separated, but the limited number of suggested revisions 
perceived would suggest that these sections can be combined into one ballot once it is sent to 
the JC as an approval ballot 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any other comments; there were none. 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 7 of 24 
 

Tab D8 – Standard 51 (report included in the 2018 meeting packet) 
B.Sickles is the TG chair, and explained that the group met 3 times since the 2017 JC F2F, and 
is scheduled to meet next on October 16, 2018. He provided a brief update regarding the open 
issues, adding that 2 issues were completed and standard 51 published in May 2018. 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments and questions. 
 
Regarding the open issue of solid surfacing materials, Massoud asked what the negative vote 
was about at the CPHC. B.Sickles said it appears from the comment that the negative voter was 
a bit disconnected from the intent of the language so we may only need a brief discussion to clear 
this up. When this occurred, the Standard (170 in this case) was being published and there was 
no time to clear it up because the publication deadline was looming. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any other comments; there were none. 
 
 
Tab D9 – TGs for Standards having no action since 2017 F2F (report included in the 2018 
meeting packet) 
 
M.Perez reported on the active TGs that have had no teleconferences since the previous F2F 
meeting, and asked if there were any comments; there were none. 
 
 
Tab E – FDA Presentation – Girvin Liggans, Ph.D, REHS, DAAS 
G.Liggans presented the highlights regarding the 2017 update of the Food Code, confirming that 
his presentation today was not available to share, however questions asked outside this meeting 
can be directed here: 
 

Email:  retailfoodpolicyteam@fda.hhs.gov 
Website: http://www.fda.gov/RetailFoodProtection 

 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments and questions. 
 
J.Brady asked M.Kohler how the new definition change in vending machines affects Standards 
25 or 170. M.Kohler and Larry confirmed it doesn’t, as the new Food Code definition is already 
the updated one in both NSF Standards. 
 
T.Jumalon asked a question about the addition of the new term “intact meat”, and if G.Liggans 
could explain how this relates to Gyro meat. G/Liggans stated the new definition: 
 

“Intact Meat” means a cut of whole muscle(s) meat that has not undergone comminution, 
injection, mechanical tenderization, or reconstruction. 

 
Then he added that Gyro meat is not considered a whole meat roast, thus it’s not “intact meat”. 
T.Jumalon agreed, and added the way it’s handled is like a whole muscle roast, to which E.Todd 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 8 of 24 
 

asked how the operator is supposed to know whether a piece of meat is “intact” or not. G.Liggans 
provided another example of injected muscle, and said that it will be spelled out on the label such 
that if the label does not specifically state “Not Intact” then the meat is considered “intact” 
 
Then the question was asked to explain the rationale surrounding the change in raw animal foods 
being cooked for 15 seconds to “165°F or above for < 1 second (instantaneous)”. Girvin confirmed 
this was updated based on current USDA data, adding that marking instructions in the Food Code 
have been likewise update to avoid confusion. 
 
L.Rodriguez asked when the supplement would officially be out, and G.Liggans said 2019-2020. 
 
T.Johnson asked if there was any discussion about allergens, and more specifically is it likely they 
are going to eventually be treated like pathogens. G.Liggans said these are tricky, as there are a 
number of extenuating things going on. For instance, is it practical to have 100% allergen free 
restaurants? There is actually a lot being discussed and no telling where it will end up. 
 
J.Hipp asked G.Liggans to expound on a subject not within the presentation but was raised by 
the CFP recently, specifically regarding the updates to the cleaning agent and temperature 
requirements for Dishwashers. G.Liggans indicated the question raised by the CFP is regarding 
wash water, and basically that the temperature must be 120oF or as specified on manufacturers 
label. This poses a problem because by trying to make the equipment standard relying on 
chemical label, it now has to vary depending on the label of wash water chemical. M.Kohler added 
this is one of the points trying to align with the food code and having no conflict. In this case, there 
are specific requirements for Standard 3 and they meet the current code. With this potential 
update in the code, we will need to decide how the Standard will evolve.  
 
T.Johnson asked where 120oF comes from, and G.Liggans indicated this is a historical value, 
which has been in existence for a long time. The chemical suppliers would argue that higher 
temperature works better, but that’s not to say 120oF doesn’t work at all. There are some 
municipalities looking for water/energy conservation and now we’re asking a different question: is 
120oF good enough. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any other comments; there were none. 
 
 
Tab F – New Issue Papers and Interpretation Requests 
 
With a few extra minutes remaining in today’s meeting schedule, M.Perez decided to skip to 2 
straightforward Issue Papers he submitted to finish up the day’s meetings, specifically Tabs F2 
and F3. Tab F1 would begin the discussion at tomorrow’s meeting. 
 
 
Tab F2 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-08 – Change of NOTE in 5.2.1 of Standard 8 
M.Perez is the issue proponent and presented his paper and supporting documents. He added 
that research suggests when the FE Standards became ANSI Certified about 20 years ago, there 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 9 of 24 
 

were several NOTEs in various previous publications of FE Standards that were erroneously 
carried over as NOTEs in the ANSI publications. M.Perez reminded the group that by ANSI 
definition, NOTEs call out Informative sections within the Normative portion of a Standard. In the 
case of this particular NOTE, the language is Normative and should be presented without the use 
of the term “NOTE”. 
 
Recommendation is to send this directly to JC Approval Ballot: 
 
 

5.2 Internal angles and corners 
 
5.2.1 Internal corners or angles or corners of less than 135o in a food zone shall be smooth and 
have a minimum continuous radii of 1/8 in (0.13 in, 3.2 mm). 
 

NOTE – Lesser radii may be used where necessary to ensure the proper functioning of 
parts (such as sealing ring grooves, saw guides, hles and grooves) provided they are easily 
cleanable. 

 
5.2.1.1 Lesser radii may be used where necessary to ensure the proper functioning of parts such 
as: 
 

- sealing ring grooves 
- saw guides 
- holes 
- grooves 

 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 

Motion by J.Hipp:  Send directly to JC Approval Ballot.  
Second:    D.Negandhi 
Further discussion:  J.Leonard asked M.Perez to explain the rationale of moving 

the word ‘corners’ to be after the word ‘angles’. M.Perez said 
this was simply to match the alphabetical ordering within the 
title of the section itself.  

Vote:  Twenty-seven in favor, Zero Opposed, Zero Abstain 
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send directly to JC Approval Ballot 
 
 
Tab F3 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-09 – Change of NOTE in 5.4.2 of Standard 21 
M.Perez is the issue proponent and presented his paper and supporting documents. He indicated 
that much the same as the issue paper just discussed (FE-2018-08), the NOTE in this section is 
also Normative in nature so the term ‘NOTE’ should be removed and this language given its own 
section number. 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 10 of 24 
 

 
Recommendation is to send this directly to JC Approval Ballot: 
 
 

5.4 Cover requirements 
 
• 

 
5.4.2 Thermoplastic refuse containers used primarily outdoors shall have a cover that, when in 
place, prevents water from entering the container opening. 
 

NOTE – Thermoplastic refuse containers used primarily indoors are exempt from this 
requirement. Covers with swinging-closure mechanisms are acceptable for indoor use. 

 
5.4.2.1 Thermoplastic refuse containers used primarily indoors are exempt from this requirement. 
Covers with swinging-closure mechanisms are acceptable for indoor use. 

 
 
 
Opened the floor for comments 
 

Motion by D.Negandhi:  Send directly to JC Approval Ballot.  
Second:    R.Brandt 
Further discussion:  D.Melaragno asked if there are labeling requirements for 

swinging covers. K.Fall indicated there are no specific 
requirements to label, and the intent is that it’s obvious for 
indoor versus outdoor equipment. J.Leonard followed up 
with the question of how the user would know this. M.Perez 
indicated this was a good question but not germane to the 
issue on the floor adding the intent is that this is an 
exemption and the removal of the word ‘NOTE is 
appropriate. 

Vote:  Twenty-seven in favor, Zero Opposed, Zero Abstain 
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send directly to JC Approval Ballot 
 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any other items of existing business not listed on the agenda; none 
were brought to the floor and the meeting was adjourned for the day. 
 
 
M.Perez reconvened the meeting at 8:00 am on August 23rd. 
 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 11 of 24 
 

Tab F1 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-07 – Glass in Bi-Metal Thermometers 
E.Halberg as proxy for F.Chan presented issue paper and supporting documents regarding the 
use of Glass in Bi-Metal Thermometers 
 

FE-2018-07 - Glass in Bi-Metal Thermometers.pdf 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 
M.Perez asked E.Halberg if the suggestion was to change the Standard, and if so how. Eric said 
yes; the current test is too rigid and there are no thermometers in the market that will pass the 
breakage test. To this Massoud asked if no thermometers can currently pass, how are they 
certified and M.Kohler confirmed the standards are for glass in general, and specifications that 
glass suppliers must meet. That is typically as far as the testing goes. Thus, the requirements are 
satisfied regarding the raw material specifications of the glass. 
 

Motion, by S.Schaefer: Send issue to 51 TG for review 
Second:    J.Hipp 
Discussion: Returning to the raw material question, J.Petersen asked if 

this applies to probe thermometers or others; mike 
confirmed it applies to glass anywhere and J.Hipp read off 
the pertinent section of Standard 51: 

 
4.1.1  Glass and glass-like materials 
 
Glass and glass-like materials, including porcelain, porcelain enamels, and ceramic coatings, shall not 
be used on surfaces intended for direct food contact that are also subject to impact by hard objects 
during use (e.g., countertops, tabletops, cutting boards, cooking surfaces) except as permitted in 
4.2.4.1. 
 
4.1.1.1  Glass and glass-like materials may be used on grated cooking surfaces. 
 
4.1.1.2  When used on splash zone and food zone non-direct food contact surfaces that may be 
subject to impact by hard objects during use, glass and glass-like coatings shall meet the impact 
resistance requirements in 10.3. 
 
4.1.1.3  When used on direct food contact surfaces that are not subject to impact, glass and glass-
like coatings shall meet the impact resistance requirements in 10.4. Glass-like coatings shall yield an 
adherence rating of 3 or better when tested according to ASTM B 916. 
 
4.1.1.4  Glass, other than light fixtures, that may be subject to contact during use and routine 
maintenance and cleaning shall conform: 
 

— to the impact test in ANSI Z97.1 for Class A glass; or 
— to the impact test within ANSI/UL 197; or 
— to the impact test within BS857:1967. 

 
And asked if those performance requirements not 
applicable to thermometers, to which mike indicated those 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/43717/FE-2018-07%20-%20Glass%20in%20Bi-Metal%20Thermometers.pdf


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 12 of 24 
 

are for glass like coatings, not to safety glass. J.Hipp 
suggested the TG consider a rewrite discussion based on 
the use. M.Nashan suggested that all the other glass 
standards referenced have nothing to do with this 
application.  
 
J.Brania then referenced the video presented by E.Halberg 
stating that in general, there are a number of consistency 
challenges with duplicating this in other labs so if the TG 
agrees to develop a method here, it will require some work 
on the method development. J.Brady suggested that there 
are tens of thousands of these instruments in the field and 
have been there for many years, and has anyone here seen 
an issue? A couple regulators indicated that they have seen 
instances where broken thermometer glass has occurred, 
thus there may be a need to update the language. 

Vote:     Twenty-six in favor, Zero Opposed, B.Sickles Abstained 
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Materials 
 
 
 
Tab F4 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-10 – Food Shields 
J.Murray is the issue proponent and presented his paper, supporting documents and video 
presentation. 
 

FE-2018-10 - Food Shields.pdf 
 
 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 
M.Samarya-Timm asked if there are studies comparing microbial load derived from respiratory 
sources versus from user’s hands. T.Gagliardi reminded the group that the last time they dug into 
this topic, a myriad of work was completed, and the video here still presents failures of user 
execution. He added that in his opinion, it’s a no win situation because hand contact is an issue 
and much as the perception of the value of the ‘sneeze guard’. J.Murray agreed this was a 
burdensome issue, but simply trying to find a better middle ground. T.Jumalon said the obvious 
fix would be to make the food well less deep, to which J.Murray indicated the customer of the 
equipment dictates that part largely, and they don’t want to have to fill up small food wells every 
few minutes. 
 
M.Perez reminded the group that for further discussion, there has to be a motion on the floor.  
 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44168/FE-2018-10%20-%20Food%20Shields.pdf


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 13 of 24 
 

Motion by M.Nashan:  To send to a task group 
Second:    K.Northcutt 
Discussion P.Matus suggested that what is being proposed was 

discussed for 3 years in the TG already, thus this will all be 
regurgitated. J.Murray said he understood, adding he has 
several large customers complaining about what steps are 
being taken to affect a change. It’s an inconvenience for him 
as well because all his equipment is current with the 
standard so it would be a lot of money and time to change 
as well. M.Nashan said he hears the same requests from 
his customers, but it has to be practical and usable. 
T.Johnson agreed this has all been discussed before but 
enough time has passed where a new discussion is 
warranted. J.Peterson said that several years ago, this 
subject came up and we questioned as a group how many 
documented cases were due to respiratory versus hands. 
This also needs to be front of mind this time if this goes to 
TG.  

 
J.Brania said that sometime a long time ago, it was decided 
that a full size pan 12” x 20” was correct. Why not offer a 16” 
pan. Then the food would also be fresher because it was 
replenished more often. M.Kohler added we’ve talked about 
a risk assessment before, but in the long run, this is simply 
a quality thing not a wholesomeness thing. T.Gagliardi 
reminded the group that the problem with risk based 
methods here is the time of ‘infection’ of one person to 
another is not long enough to establish connection 
epidemiologically. S.Burton-Zick suggested there’s nothing 
wrong with the current language. These same end users are 
making adjustments to the equipment after the regulator 
evaluates and it’s defeating the purpose. 
 
T.Gagliardi called the motion to question. 

 
J.Brady asked for the friendly amendment to be specific 
about which TG to send to, specifically to the food shields 
TG. 

 
Vote:     Seventeen in favor, Seven Opposed, Three Abstained 
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to TG on Food Shields 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 14 of 24 
 

Tab F5 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-11 – Change of NOTE in Section 5.2.2 of Standard 5  
J.Wallace is the issue proponent and presented his paper and supporting documents. He 
indicated this and his next issue paper were essentially the same in that he is looking to update 
the two “NOTEs” in the Standard, per the discussion held early about “NOTEs” being informative 
and not normative. 
 

FE-2018-11 - Change of NOTE in 5.2.2.pdf 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 

Motion by T.Johnson: Send it to task group on Standard 5 
Second:    M.Nashan 
Discussion:  J.Wallace indicated his intent was to have this go directly to 

ballot like the other “NOTEs” as this is very straightforward. 
Tony agreed adding that section 5.2.2 is in conflict with what 
the NOTE states. J.Brady suggested this language may 
have been pulled directly from the back of the Standard for 
suggested installation procedures, and he read off the 
statement from Standard 2. M.Kohler confirmed Section 
5.2.2 is referring to underneath the water heater, and the 
NOTE is referring to service connections on the side of the 
machine.  

Vote:     Thirteen in favor, Seven Opposed, Seven abstentions 
Motion:   Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to TG on Standard 5 
 
 
Tab F6 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-12 – Change of NOTE in Section 7 of Standard 5  
J.Wallace is the issue proponent and presented his paper and supporting documents. He 
explained that the recommendation on this one is to merge the NOTE into the product literature 
paragraph, unlike the previous NOTE being removed utterly. 
 

FE-2018-12 - Change of NOTE in 7.pdf 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 

Motion by J.Leonard:  Send language directly to JC ballot 
Second:   T.Gagliardi 
Discussion:   None 
Vote:     Twenty-seven in favor, Zero Opposed, Zero Abstention  
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send directly to JC ballot 
 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44169/FE-2018-11%20-%20Change%20of%20NOTE%20in%205.2.2.pdf
https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44170/FE-2018-12%20-%20Change%20of%20NOTE%20in%207.pdf


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 15 of 24 
 

Tab F7 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-13 – Potable Water Definition  
J.Brady is the issue proponent and presented his paper and supporting documents. He explained 
how this topic came up during a Standard 12 TG meeting, and after conducting some research 
learned the term is used somewhat differently in 11 different standards. 
 

FE-2018-13 - Potable Water Definition.pdf 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 

Motion by J.Scanlon: Send to Standard 12 TG for review 
Second:    T.Gagliardi  
Discussion:  B.Corrao asked how the definition would work, and is there 

one already elsewhere. J.Brady indicated there isn’t 
currently a definition and the intent would be for it to apply 
to all standards. E.Todd indicated the World Health 
Organization lists additional hazards than listed in this draft 
language. J.Leonard asked if this will apply to other NSF 
standards, and M.Kohler said just food equipment. 
J.Peterson read off Merriam Webster definition, adding what 
is this group seeking beyond that. M.Perez confirmed that 
at this point there is no definition in Standard 170 so one 
should be created that fits all FE Standards. L.Eils 
suggested the EPA has this defined already and is probably 
close. 

Vote:     Twenty-six in favor, Zero Opposed, One Abstention  
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to Standard 12 Task Group 
 
 
 
Tab F8 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-14 – ICP Changed to CIP  
M.Kohler is the issue proponent and presented his paper and supporting documents, explaining 
the background related to the Conference for Food Protection (CFP). 
 

FE-2018-14 - ICP changed to CIP, including support documents.pdf 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 

Motion by T.Johnson: Send this language to the TG on Food Equipment Materials 
Second:    J.Brady 
Discussion:  T.Johnson suggested it’s important to understand that CIP 

(clean-in-place) is a subset of IPC (in-place-cleaning), IPC 
is visual and CIP is not. This JC should be careful not to get 
rid of the concept of IPC. M.Kohler confirmed the intent here 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44171/FE-2018-13%20-%20Potable%20Water%20Definition.pdf
https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44172/FE-2018-14%20-%20ICP%20changed%20to%20CIP,%20including%20support%20documents.pdf


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 16 of 24 
 

is generally to change many of these used terms to CIP, but 
there will be places where manual IPC is needed. 
T.Johnson further explained the difference of CIP versus 
IPC, mainly that CIP is a plumbed process and IPC is not. 
There was various questions about the semantics of the 
terms and the following example seemed to clear this up. A 
large mixing bowl, too heavy to move easily, receives 
manual IPC, whereas soft serve ice cream equipment, 
which has inaccessible internal parts is plumbed and 
cleaned using CIP. 

Vote:     Twenty-seven in favor, Zero Opposed, Zero Abstentions  
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
 
 
 
Tab F9 – Request for Interpretation – Tubing  
Tab F10 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-15 – Tubing in Cappuccino Machines 
M.Perez presented the RFI, explained the intent as discussed by the requester. Following 
discussion with M.Kohler, it was decided that an Issue Paper proposing revised language would 
add clarity to the language. 
 

Perez-Trivedi - Cappuccino Machine Milk Supply Tubing RFI; 2018-07-30, including 
RFI.pdf 
FE-2018-15 - Tubing in Cappuccino Machines.pdf 

 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 

Motion by M.Kohler:  Send this language to Standard 4 TG 
Second    B.Glynn 
Discussion:  B.Poton explained the background of the RFI for his 

colleague not in attendance, specifically concerning the 
piece of tubing outside the refrigeration portion of the 
equipment. B.Glynn asked how this fits with other milk 
dispensing equipment. M.Kohler confirmed that falls under 
Standard 20 and is covered there. He added that as far as 
the ‘pull back’ is concerned, there isn’t anything defined for 
that yet, but could be discussed during the TG calls 

Vote:     Twenty-seven in favor, Zero Opposed, Zero Abstentions  
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to TG on Hot Food Equipment 
 
 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44923/Perez-Trivedi%20-%20Cappuccino%20Machine%20Milk%20Supply%20Tubing%20RFI;%202018-07-30,%20including%20RFI.pdf
https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44923/Perez-Trivedi%20-%20Cappuccino%20Machine%20Milk%20Supply%20Tubing%20RFI;%202018-07-30,%20including%20RFI.pdf
https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44173/FE-2018-15%20-%20Tubing%20in%20Cappuccino%20Machines.pdf


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 17 of 24 
 

Tab F11 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-16 – New Biofilm Cleaning Standard  
T.Johnson is the issue proponent and presented his paper and supporting documents, explaining 
that he’s not certain if a new standard is best, or language within an existing standard would 
suffice. The real ask here is a TG be developed for Biofilm discussion 
 

FE-2018-16 - New Biofilm Cleaning Standard.pdf 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments 
 
E.Todd said it’s not just food where this exists, this would include water as well. J.Brady asked if 
there was a clear idea would the primary equipment would be for this, to which T.Johnson 
suggested any plumbed system without visible inspection and cleaning possibilities. This would 
include several standards like 4, 7, 12, 18, or any that would depend on surfaces you cannot see. 
B.Corrao asked for citation of specific equipment, and T.Johnson said that right now the 
performance testing is completed on virgin equipment, and not taking well into account what’s 
happening in the field.  
 
M.Perez indicated that separately and prior to T.Johnson submitted this paper, he initiated a 
dialog with Dr. Paul Sturman, a microbiologist specializing in biofilms. They are discussing 
developing language to address biofilms to the cleaning and sanitizing test protocol of Standard 
12. Dr. Sturman indicated the challenge culture already used in the Standards 12 adequate, and 
he suggests that simply updating the test protocol would be a great approach.  
 

FE-2018-16a - Standard 12 Ice Machine Cleanability - Biofilms.pdf 
  
He confirmed that Dr. Sturman and he were working to drafting an issue paper. 
 
M.Kohler said the discussion is surrounding water, and it’s important to consider other machines 
that don’t use just water like soft serve ice cream machines. M.Perez said that was a great point 
we’ll have to develop the thinking around this. 
 
T.Johnson suggested beginning with ice machines, the said he would like to withdraw his issue 
paper because he was unaware about the great work already being done prior to submitting his 
general issue paper. M.Perez invited T.Johnson to join the effort to draft an issue paper, which 
was accepted. 
 
Action item: A.Rose to withdraw Issue Paper 
 
Tab G – CFP Presentation – Derek Deland 
D.Deland presented specifics regarding the Conference for Food Protection, and its role in 
promoting retail food safety. 
 

CFP Presentation for 2018 FE JC.pptx 
 
M.Perez opened the floor for comments; there were none. 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44174/FE-2018-16%20-%20New%20Biofilm%20Cleaning%20Standard.pdf
https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44924/FE-2018-16a%20-%20Standard%2012%20Ice%20Machine%20Cleanability%20-%20Biofilms.pdf
https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44925/CFP%20Presentation%20for%202018%20FE%20JC.pptx


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 18 of 24 
 

 
Tab H – Other New Business 
Per the motion on day 1 regarding the possible new agenda items, M.Perez confirmed that 
B.Glynn had submitted 2 new issue papers and is ready to present them here today. B.Glynn 
explained the background for both was with respect to comments she provided on the retiring of 
Standard 36 – dinnerware. The intent for which is to discuss what if any specifics in 36 should be 
updated into Standard 2. 
 
 
Tab H1 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-17 – Glass in Food Zone 
B.Glynn presented her issue paper and supporting documents, explaining this first paper is for 
incorporating test protocols for types of breakable dinnerware. 
 

FE-2018-17 - Glass in Food Zone.pdf 
 
 

Motion by T.Johnson:  Send this to the TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
Second:    S. Schaefer 
Discussion:  T.Johnson asked is there currently an impact test for 

dinnerware, and if not should one be created. B.Glynn 
explained what they do at Starbucks, and the thought for 
developing specific methods for testing in Standard 2. The 
problem now is that there is no consistent method so we’ve 
cobbled together various methods used elsewhere. 
B.Corrao asked how this relates to health and safety, and 
B.Glynn said there is a potential for breakage close to ice 
bins, so dinnerware needs to be durable. M.Kohler 
confirmed there currently are no ceramic glassware 
standards in the FE suite, however some time back he put 
in an Issue Paper to include glassware. At that time the JC 
refused. J.Brady called up and read off the IP submitted by 
M.Kohler in 2000.  

 
Excerpt: 

Standard 36Dinnerware 
 
Mike Kohler (NSF International) gave an overview of the scope of the current Standard 36.  There 
is a note in the Standard regarding the exclusion of glassware. He asked the Joint Committee if the 
scope should be expanded to include chinaware and glassware. 
 
M. Elliot thought there might be a concern about the glazes used in making the chinaware and 
glassware.  K. Northcutt asked if flatware is or could be included in Standard 36 as well.  M. 
Whybark replied that flatware is covered by Standard 2.  Mr. Perez then asked why glassware and 
chinaware were excluded from Standard 36. To which M. Whybark replied that those items had 
been excluded because they could not pass the impact test. 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44490/FE-2018-17%20-%20Glass%20in%20Food%20Zone.pdf


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 19 of 24 
 

M. Kohler added that there is now glassware available which is capable of driving nails into two 
by fours.  M. Schwartz questioned why regulators have not expressed a need for this.  J. Hipp 
expressed concern that if we included these items to be covered by that standard that only new 
glassware might be able to meet the standard.  Mr. Schwartz viewed it as an effort from 
manufacturers to try to get the NSF Mark for marketing purposes. 
 
Jim Brady stated that he would feel safer if glassware had some type of testing.  Mr. Schwartz 
made a motion that NSF should stay away from adding glassware and chinaware to Standard 
36 unless there is a request from the regulatory sector to add it to the standard.  The motion 
carried.  Glassware and chinaware will not be added to Standard 36 unless a need from the 
regulatory sector is later expressed. 
 

T.Jumalon then asked what the purpose would be for adding 
this to Standard 2. B.Glynn said she is hearing from 
manufacturers that NSF does not require testing, and it 
would be easier for her as a user if there was somewhere to 
point to for testing. M.Samarya-Timm indicated that as a 
regulator and user of the ceramic cups, she sees value in 
updating the performance testing to include this, adding it 
would set the bar above and beyond the food code. 
T.Jumalon said he doesn’t see how putting something in a 
standard gives any power to regulators. The ownership 
needs to be placed on the users. B.Glynn provided an 
example of lead in dishware and how some years back that 
was not surprising to find lead in wine glasses. J.Murray 
suggested this sounds like a quality measurement, not 
public safety. J.Leonard. 

Vote:     Twenty-four in favor, Three Opposed, Zero Abstentions  
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
 
 
 
 
Tab H2 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-18 – Dinnerware versus Tableware 
B.Glynn presented her issue paper and supporting documents, explaining this second paper is 
regarding the terms dinnerware and tableware. 
 

FE-2018-18 - Dinnerware versus Tableware.pdf 
 

Motion by T.Johnson: Send this to the TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
Second:    J.Scanlon 
Discussion:  J.Hipp indicated that tableware is not defined in 170, so we’ll 

have to develop that as well. M.Kohler confirmed that 

https://standards.nsf.org/apps/org/workgroup/fe_jc/download.php/44491/FE-2018-18%20-%20Dinnerware%20versus%20Tableware.pdf


Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 20 of 24 
 

tableware was in the Food Code and includes flatware, so 
we may have to keep that in mind as well. 

Vote:     Twenty-five in favor, Zero Opposed, Two Abstentions  
Motion:    Carries 

 
Action item: A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 

 
 

Tab I – Meeting Wrap Up 
M.Perez thanked everyone for attending, and NSF for hosting the meeting. Confirmed the next 
proposed date for a Face-to-Face meeting is August 21-22, 2019. A doodle poll will be going out 
in the weeks ahead to establish. 
 
M.Perez asked if there was any other new business. M. Samarya-Timm suggested the JC should 
seek additional gender equity. M.Perez acknowledged the comment. 
 
M.Perez then publicly thanked Roger Coffman who retired from the JC earlier in 2018 and not 
currently attending. He further recognized the many years of service Roger had contributed and 
appreciative of the excellent participation. M.Perez then indicated that K.Northcutt (present) is 
announcing now that this would be his last meeting as well, and thanked K.Northcutt for his many 
years of service. K.Northcutt also gave thanks to the group and to NSF for the opportunity to 
participate and wish everyone the best of luck. 
 
M.Perez asked if there were any further comments; there were none. 
 

Motion by R.Brandt:  To adjourn 
Second:    J.Scanlon 
Discussion:  none 
Vote:     Twenty-Seven in favor, Zero Opposed, Zero Abstentions 
Motion:    carries 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 21 of 24 
 

LIST ACTION ITEMS: 
 
 
Tab F2 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-08 – Change of NOTE in 5.2.1 of Standard 8 
 A.Rose to send directly to JC Approval Ballot 
 
Tab F3 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-09 – Change of NOTE in 5.4.2 of Standard 21 
 A.Rose to send directly to JC Approval Ballot 
 
Tab F1 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-07 – Glass in Bi-Metal Thermometers 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Materials 
 
Tab F4 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-10 – Food Shields 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Shields 
 
Tab F5 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-11 – Change of NOTE in Section 5.2.2 of Standard 5  
 A.Rose to send to TG on Standard 5 
 
Tab F6 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-12 – Change of NOTE in Section 7 of Standard 5  
 A.Rose to send directly to JC ballot 
 
Tab F7 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-13 – Potable Water Definition  
 A.Rose to send to Standard 12 Task Group 
 
Tab F8 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-14 – ICP Changed to CIP  
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
 
Tab F10 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-15 – Tubing in Cappuccino Machines 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Hot Food Equipment 
 
Tab F11 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-16 – New Biofilm Cleaning Standard  
 A.Rose to withdraw Issue Paper 
 
Tab H1 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-17 – Glass in Food Zone 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
 
Tab H2 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-18 – Dinnerware versus Tableware 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 22 of 24 
 

Joint Committee Members in Attendance 
 
Name Company / organization Interest category 
Bhatt, Swati Los Angeles County Regulatory 
Bortolotti, Stefano Carpigiani Industry 
Brady, Jim Wawa, Inc. User 
Brandt, Rex Taylor Company Industry 
** Brania, Jonathan Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. User 
Burton-Zick, Sara DuPage County Health Department Regulatory 
Dyer, Randy, PhD Nestle User 
Gagliardi, Tony Consultant - Public Health / Regulatory User 
Glynn, Beth Starbucks Coffee Company User 
Hall, Jon Glastender, Inc. Industry 
Hipp, Joel Hobart Corporation Industry 
Johnson, Tom Qlean Tech Enterprises, LLC User 
Jumalon, Thomas, REHS Wake County Environmental Services Regulatory 
Kohler, Mike NSF International User 
Leonard, James, MPH, LEHP Princess Cruises User 
Liggans, Girvin, PhD Food and Drug Administration Regulatory 
Maxon, Gary The Delfield Company Industry 
Negandhi, Dipak, PE, CFSP-
 

Manitowoc Foodservice Industry 
Neshan, Massoud Southern CaseArts Industry 
Northcutt, Kirk Auto-Chlor System Industry 
1 Perez, Michael Baring Industries User 
Peterson Jr., James C.i.i. Food Service Design User 
Rodriguez, Luis, MS CDC Vessel Sanitation Program Regulatory 
2 Rose, Allan, MS NSF International General Interest 
Samarya-Timm, Michéle Somerset County Department of Health Regulatory 
Scanlon, John Hatco Corporation Industry 
Schaefer, Stephen Hoshizaki America, Inc. Industry 
Sickles, Willard, PE InterMetro Industries Corporation Industry 
Webb, Timothy Navy and Marine Corps Public Health 

 
Regulatory 

1 – JC Chair 
2 – JC Secretariat 
** - participation via teleconference 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 23 of 24 
 

Joint Committee Members NOT in Attendance 
 

Name Company / organization Interest category 
Brasseur, Eric Little Caesars Enterprises User 
Dye, Shayna Sauk County Health Department Regulatory 
Hurst, Bryan, REHS, CP-FS Lincoln-Lancaster County Health 

 
Regulatory 

Klouse, Paul, REHS, CP-FS Southern Nevada Health District Regulatory 
McNeil, Thomas, RS U.S. Army User 
Tackitt, Steve Barry-Eaton District Health Department Regulatory 

 
 

Observing Attendees 

 

Company  Name  Interest Category Role 
Manitowoc Foodservice Cheryl Appell Industry Observer 
NSF International Sarah Krol General Interest Observer 
NSF International Derek Deland General Interest Observer 
NSF International Liz Gray General Interest Observer 
NSF International Kelli Fall General Interest Observer 
NSF International Sara Risley General Interest Observer 
NSF International Orsi Dezsi General Interest Observer 
NSF International Amanda Zeoli General Interest Observer 
NSF International Kaylyn Brunskole General Interest Observer 
NSF International Tyler Acree General Interest Observer 
NSF International Audra Bildeaux General Interest Observer 
NSF International DeMarrio Boles General Interest Observer 
Michigan State University Ewen Todd Public Health Observer 
NAMA Larry Eils General Interest Observer 
Stone Spectrum Joshua Spencer Industry Observer 
Versa-Gard Pep Matus Industry Observer 
A.O. Smith Water Products Joe Wallace Industry Observer 
Dairy Queen Brent Miller User Observer 
Dunkin’ Brands Patrick Nolan User Observer 
Traulsen & Co Chris Boryca Industry Observer 
NAFEM Charlie Souhrada General Interest Observer 
Lancer Kathy Magee Industry Observer 
Vita-Mix Nick Mazzino Industry Observer 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 24 of 24 
 

Auto-Chlor John Hockaday Industry Observer 
J.M. Smucker Company Bob Corrao User Observer 
Hamilton Beach Arron Bryant Industry Observer 
A.O. Smith Water Products Joe Wallace General Interest Observer 
Cornelius, Inc. Syed Rizvi Industry Observer 
Cornelius, Inc. Syed Rizvi Industry Observer 
Structural Concepts Jon Murray Industry Observer 
Structural Concepts Matt Vidro Industry Observer 
Intertek Lee Moomaw User Observer 
Intertek Nicholas Unger User Observer 
Intertek Danielle Melaragno User Observer 
Intertek Bernard Poton User Observer 



Link to Standards Development Process Video 
http://www.screencast.com/t/80mGG33G 
 
 

 

http://www.screencast.com/t/80mGG33G
http://www.screencast.com/t/80mGG33G


Annex JCFE1

(informative)

Joint Committee on Food Equipment2

Name Company / Organization Interest Category
Bhatt, Swati Los Angeles County Regulatory
Bortolotti, Stefano Carpigiani Industry
Brady, Jim* Wawa, Inc. User
Brandt, Rex* Taylor Company Industry
Brania, Jonathan* Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. User
Brasseur, Eric Little Caesars Enterprises User
Burton-Zick, Sara DuPage County Health Department Regulatory
Dye, Shayna, REHS Sauk County Health Department Regulatory
Gagliardi, Tony* Consultant - Public Health/Regulatory User
Glynn, Beth REHS* Starbucks Coffee Company User
Hall, Jon Glastender, Inc. Industry
Hipp, Joel* Hobart Corporation Industry
Johnson, Tom Qlean Tech Enterprises, LLC User
Jumalon, Thomas, REHS Wake County Environmental Services Regulatory
Kohler, Mike NSF International User
Leonard, James, MPH, LEHP Princess Cruises User
Liggans, Dr. Girvin Food and Drug Administration Regulatory
Massoud, Neshan Southern Case Arts Industry
Maxon, Gary The Delfield Company Industry
McNeil, Thomas U.S. Army User
Negandhi, Dipak*, P.E. A.O. Smith Industry
Perez, Michael** Baring Industries User
Peterson Jr., James C.i.i. Food Service Design User
Peterson, Rick, RS Norwalk Community College Hospitality Program Regulatory
Rodriguez, Luis, M.S. CDC Vessel Sanitation Program Regulatory
Samarya-Timm, Michele Somerset County Department of Health Regulatory
Scanlon, John* Hatco Corporation Industry
Schaefer, Stephen Hoshizaki America, Inc. Industry
Sickles, Willard*, P.E. InterMetro Industries Corporation Industry
Tackitt, Steve* Barry-Eaton District Health Department Regulatory
Webb, Timothy MS, REHS Navy & Marine Corps Public Health Center Regulatory
Joint Committee Secretariat: Al Rose

Membership Balance:
Industry: 10
Regulatory: 10
User: 10

*Task group chair    **Joint Committee Chair (non voting)

1 The information contained in this Annex is not part of the American National Standard (ANS) and has not been processed in 
accordance with ANSI’s requirements for ANS. As such, this Annex may contain material that has not been subjected to public 
review or a consensus process. In addition, it does not contain requirements necessary for conformance to the Standard.
2 Food Equipment Joint Committee members on the date of publication - subject to change 07/26/2019



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Members with 100% Voting Record 

 
This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

August 14, 2019                                                                Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Since the previous Face-to-Face meeting in August 2018, there have been a total of 21 JC 
Approval Ballots. The average voting over all 21 ballots was 95% participation 
 
 
We would like to recognize and thank those members who voted on all of these:  
 
Stefano Bortolotti 
Jim Brady 
Rex Brandt 
Jonathan Brania 
Eric Brasseur 
Shayna Dye 
Tony Gagliardi 
Jon Hall 
Joel Hipp 
Tom Johnson 
Mike Kohler 
Girvin Liggans 
Gary Maxon 
Dipak Negandhi 
Massoud Neshan 
Jim Peterson 
Luis Rodriguez 
John Scanlon 
Stephen Schaefer 
Bill Sickles 
Tim Webb 
 
 
Thank you Food Equipment Joint Committee Members!  
 
 



August 2018 - August 2019 JCFE Voting 
8/8/2019 2i33r1 4i25r1 7I20R3 51i19r1 4i28r2 170i25r4 2i35r1* 2i34r3 & 170i24r2 7i22r1 170i25r3 170i26r1 170i21r6 51i16r2 3i16r1 7i21r2 170i22r1 6i14r3 3i14r3 21i7r1 8i16r1 12i9r1

Name Company Total 

Ballots

Ballots 

Cast

Participation Dinnerware to 

Tableware

Fwe 5.48 

Exemption

Drains Surface 

Cleanability

Tubing in 

Capuccino 

Machines

Dinnerware 

see tableware

NR Update (metric) IPC to CIP NR Update Dinnerware v 

Tableware

NR Update Solid Surface 

Materials

Solid Surface 

Materials

NR Update Seams in 6.3 Heated Organic 

Cpating

Increased Lock-out 

Time

Air Gap Reference 

5.9.2

Note in 5.4.2 Note in 5.2.1 Challenge Culture 

Temp

Ballot Open Date 21 Wed, July 17 Mon, July 1 Tue, May 28 Fri, May 10 Wed, May 8 Wed, Apr 17 Wed, Apr 10 Tue, Mar 26 Tue, Mar 19 2019 Mon, Mar 4 2019 Tue, 26 Feb 2019 Tue, 15 Jan 2019 Tue, 15 Jan 2019 Thu, 3 Jan 2019 Mon, 10 Dec 2018 Tue, 20 Nov 2018 Fri, 19 Oct 2018 Mon, 17 Sep 2018 Wed, 12 Sep 2018 Tue, 11 Sep 2018 Thu, 30 Aug 2018

Ballot Close Date 7-Aug-2019 22-Jul-2019 18-Jun-2019 31-May-2019 29-May-2019 8-May-2019 1-May-2019 16-Apr-2019 9-Apr-2019 25-Mar-2019 19-Mar-2019 5-Feb-2019 5-Feb-2019 24-Jan-2019 7-Jan-2019 11-Dec-2018 9-Nov-2018 8-Oct-2018 3-Oct-2018 2-Oct-2018 20-Sep-2018

21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

Bhatt, Swati Los Angeles County 21 20 95% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Bortolotti, Stefano Carpigiani 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Brady, Jim Wawa, Inc. 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Brandt, Rex Taylor Co. 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Brania, Jonathan Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Brasseur, Eric Little Caesars Enterprises 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Burton-Zick, Sara DuPage County Health Department 21 14 67% 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Dye, Shayna, REHS Sauk County Health Department 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Dyer, Randy Nestle 5 4 80% ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible 0 1 1 1 1

Gagliardi, Tony Consultant - Public Health/Regulatory 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Glynn, Beth Starbucks Coffee Company 21 19 90% 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Hall, Jon Glastender Inc 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Hipp, Joel Hobart Corp. 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Hurst, REHS, CP-FS, Bryan Lincoln-Lancaster Co. Health Department 14 13 93% ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Johnson, Tom Qlean Tech Enterprises 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Jumalon, R.E.H.S., J. Wake County North Carolina 21 19 90% 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Klouse, REHS, CP-FS, Paul Southern Nevada Health District 5 5 100% ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible inelig1ble 1 1 1 1 1

Kohler, Mike NSF International 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Leonard, MPH, LEHP, James Princess Cruises 21 19 90% 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Liggans, Girvin Food and Drug Administration 21 19 90% 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Maxon, Gary The Delfield Co. 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

McNeil, RS, Thomas U.S. Army 21 20 95% 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Negandhi, P.E., CFSP-1, Dipak A.O. Smith 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Neshan, Massoud Southern CaseArts 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Northcutt, Kirk Auto-Chlor System 5 5 100% ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible ineligible 1 1 1 1 1

Petersen Jr., James C.i.i. Food Service Design 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Rodriguez, Luis Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Samarya-Timm, Michéle Somerset County Department of Health 21 20 95% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Scanlon, John Hatco Corp. 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Schaefer, Stephen Hoshizaki America, Inc. 21 20 95% 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Sickles, P.E., Willard InterMetro Industries Corp. 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Tackitt, Steve Barry-Eaton District Health Department 21 12 57% 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1

Webb, Timothy Navy and Marine Corps Public Health Center 21 21 100% 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Ballots Returned 608 25 24 29 25 28 28 27 26 28 29 27 30 30 29 30 30 31 33 33 33 33

Ballots Sent Out 638 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 33 33 33 33 33

95% 86% 83% 100% 86% 97% 97% 93% 87% 93% 97% 90% 100% 100% 97% 100% 100% 94% 100% 100% 100% 100%

* Also includes: 4i29r1, 5i10r1, 6i15r1, 8i17r1, 12r13r1, 13r7i1, 18r15i1, 20i7r1, 21i7r1, 25i12r1, 29i6i1, 35i9r1, 37i8r1, 51i18r1, 58i8r1, 169i9r1, 170i27r1

Return %



 

  P a g e  | 1 

NSF International 
Joint Committee Membership Application Form and Agreement 

 
 

789 N. Dixboro Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48105-9723 USA 
1-800-NSF-MARK    734-769-8010 

www.nsf.org 
 

 
NSF Joint Committee on Food Equipment 

 
Please complete this application completely, execute below indicating your agreement individually and 
on behalf of the organization you represent to all of the following, and return to: 
 
NSF International 
789 N. Dixboro Road 
Ann Arbor, MI 48105 
1-800-NSF-MARK 
Phone: 734-913-6866 
Fax: 734-827-6108 
E-mail: arose@nsf.org 
 
If you are representing an organization, please also submit a Letter of Authorization from your 
organization, which Letter of Authorization must be submitted on the organization’s letterhead 
acknowledging the content of this “Joint Membership Application Form and Agreement” and signed by 
an officer of the organization.   

Sample Letter of Authorization: “We, (organization’s name), authorize (your name) to execute the 
“Joint Membership Application Form and Agreement” and to serve, if selected, on the NSF 
committee or task group.  We will support (your name) for his/her time and travel expense during 
the tenure of his/her service.” 

 
 
1.  Contact Information (Type or print)  
 
 
        
First Name   Middle Initial    Last Name 
 
 
        
Company/Organization  Division/Department 
 
 
        
Job Title 
 
 
        
Address 
 
 
        
City    State/Province 
 
 
        
Zip/Postal Code   Country 
 
 
        
Phone/Fax   E-mail Address 
 
  



  
 

  P a g e  | 2 

NSF International 
Joint Committee Membership Application Form and Agreement 

 
 

789 N. Dixboro Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48105-9723 USA 
1-800-NSF-MARK    734-769-8010 

www.nsf.org 
 

2.  Joint Committee and/or Task Group Responsibilities 
 
Your responsibilities and agreement as a Joint Committee or Task Group member shall include: 
 

• active participation in and payment of travel expenses to attend Joint Committee and Task Group events,  
• reviewing and voting on new Standards or proposed revisions to existing Standards, 
• ensuring public health, safety, and environmental issues are properly addressed in the Standard, 
• identifying research on issues affecting standards, 
• identifying new areas for standards development, 
• providing technical guidance to NSF on related issues, 
• attending Joint Committee meetings once or twice annually, depending on need (1-2 days each),  
• maintaining confidentiality of standards development materials and using such materials only for 

purposes of Joint Committee work and not for competitive or other purposes, 
• assigning all contributions to the Standards and any standards development materials/documents 

(including drafts) to NSF International,  
• complying with all NSF rules and policies as well as the NSF Antitrust Guide, and 
• volunteering to participate on Task Groups as needed. 

 
Joint Committee members are requested to serve a minimum three-year term. 
 
A member may be terminated if: 
 

− a three-year term has been completed; 
− has been inactive: 

o returns less than 75% of ballots; and/or  
o misses two consecutive meetings. 

− shows a lack of participation as an issue proponent or TG Chair or TG member 
− as necessary, in the sole judgment of NSF, for any reason, including but not limited to helping maintain 

balance on the Joint Committee. 
 
3. Interest Category (Please check the box(es) that best describes your representation on the JC.) 
 

Note:  If you fall under more than one interest category, please select the primary interest 
category that you wish to represent on the Committee.  

 
□ Industry: A member who produces, assembles, distributes, or sells materials, products, systems, or 
services covered in the scope of the standard.  Industry trade association representatives are included in this 
membership classification. 
 

□ Distributor 
□  Industry Trade Association  
□ Manufacturer of products covered by this Standard 
□ Manufacturer Processes 

 
□ Public Agency: A member who is from a public agency. 
 

□ Academia 
□ Government  
□ Military 
□ Model code organization 
 Professional public/environmental health/safety organization 
□ Public agency having regulatory authority for Products in this Standard 



  
 

  P a g e  | 3 

NSF International 
Joint Committee Membership Application Form and Agreement 

 
 

789 N. Dixboro Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48105-9723 USA 
1-800-NSF-MARK    734-769-8010 

www.nsf.org 
 

□ User/Consumer: A member who purchases, uses, or specifies materials, products, systems, or services 
covered in the scope of the standard. A member who represents an organization that provides for-profit services 
applying to the scope of the Standard 
 

□ Retailers 
□ Auditors 
□ Certification organization or test laboratory 
□ Consultants 
□ Consumer 
□ Specifier 
□ Standard developer 
□ Training provider 
□ User of products or systems covered by this Standard 
□ User/consumer Trade Associations 

 
 
4.  Standards Experience   
 
Years of experience in this Standard?        years. 
 
Other standards activities:        
           
               
           
 
 
Please attach a brief biographical outline providing your education and work related experience 
associated with the scope of the Joint Committee. 
 
5. Copyright and Intellectual Property 
 
Standards and related development materials/documents shall be owned exclusively by NSF International and 
will be copyrighted by NSF International as set forth in the U.S. Copyright Act. When an individual joins, 
volunteers for or accepts appointment to a NSF International committee, the individual, as a condition of 
membership and participation, expressly acknowledges and agrees that copyrights and all rights in and to the 
Standards and related development materials/documents (including drafts) shall be owned by NSF International, 
that NSF International will register the copyright in its own name, and you and your organization agree to assign 
all contributions of any kind to NSF International. 
 
6. Joint Committee Membership 
 
Membership on a Joint Committee is offered in accordance with NSF’s ANSI Approved Policies, including the 
requirement that the Committee represent a balance of interests.  If you are qualified for voting membership, but 
membership in your sector is currently unavailable for whatever reason, are you interested in being placed on a 
waiting list? 
 

□ Yes, I would like my name placed on a waiting list. 
□ No, I prefer that my name not be included on a waiting list. 

 



  
 

  P a g e  | 4 

NSF International 
Joint Committee Membership Application Form and Agreement 

 
 

789 N. Dixboro Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48105-9723 USA 
1-800-NSF-MARK    734-769-8010 

www.nsf.org 
 

7. Agreement for Joint Committee Membership 
 
In consideration of my appointment as a member of an NSF Joint Committee, I agree individually and on behalf of 
the organization I represent as follows: 
 

a. I acknowledge and agree to all of the foregoing, including but not limited to the responsibilities and terms 
outlined in Sections 2 and 5 of this application. 
 

b. In connection with my activities herein, I and the organization I represent shall: (a) follow and comply with 
all NSF rules and policies; (b) follow and comply with the NSF Code of Ethics, and agree not to 
encourage anyone else to violate the Code of Ethics; (c) be mindful of and take measures to comply with 
all US and foreign antitrust and competition laws, including as necessary hiring and consulting with legal 
counsel to guide my actions; and (d) comply with the NSF Antitrust Guide. 
 

c. I intend to make and will make contributions with others members of such Joint Committee and all such 
contributions will be merged into inseparable or interdependent parts of a unitary work or works.  To 
facilitate the creation of such work or works, I acknowledge and agree that my contributions (and those of 
my organization or company) and any resulting work or works constitute and are to be considered works 
made for hire.  To any extent that my contributions (and those of my organization or company) or the 
resulting work or works are not considered a work made for hire, I hereby assign to (and shall cause any 
others in my organization to assign to) NSF International all right, title and interest to all said contributions 
and all resulting works (including drafts).  I understand and agree that I acquire no rights in the resulting 
work or works, whether published or unpublished.  I attest that I have the authority and am empowered to 
grant the foregoing rights to NSF International. I agree to execute any documents necessary to effectuate 
the full and complete intent of this Section 7.c. 
 

d. I will not at any time during or subsequent to this agreement disclose or use in any way any confidential 
business information or knowledge or data I receive or develop while serving as a NSF Joint Committee 
member (“Confidential Business Information”), and I will not discuss any plans related to such 
Confidential Business Information, pricing or other information that may call into question any violation of 
the antitrust laws.  Confidential Business Information may include, but is not limited to, draft Standards 
and related standards development materials/documents, business plans, prospect lists, and trade 
secrets of NSF or its clients.  It is understood that Confidential Business Information may be disclosed to 
an accreditation body that is also under a nondisclosure agreement with NSF.  Such disclosure shall not 
occur without first informing the President, NSF International. 
 

e. I understand and agree that all Confidential Business Information, including all materials received or 
contributed to the Joint Committee, are to be used only for purposes of Joint Committee work and not for 
competitive or other purposes (either individually or by my organization).  I agree to maintain Confidential 
Business Information in strict confidence, and not to disclosure to others (including others within my 
organization).   
 

f. NSF agrees to inform Joint Committee members when a document is Confidential Business Information, 
either in a separate writing or by a legend on the face of such materials/documents.  I agree that once the 
immediate activity related to the document is completed, the document will be returned to NSF and will not 
be disclosed to others during the time the document is in my possession.  If I will be unable to maintain the 
document in a confidential manner, I agree to immediately return the document to the NSF Joint Committee 
Secretariat. 
 

g. I (and my organization) do not now hold or have, and I do not intend to hold or to have, any patent, the 
use of which would be required for compliance with any material that I contribute to or author – either 
individually or with others – as a member of any NSF Joint Committee or Task Group, or that I submit for 
use of the Joint Committee or Task Group in any NSF Standard, protocol, or guideline or any other NSF 
document. 
 



  
 

  P a g e  | 5 

NSF International 
Joint Committee Membership Application Form and Agreement 

 
 

789 N. Dixboro Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48105-9723 USA 
1-800-NSF-MARK    734-769-8010 

www.nsf.org 
 

h. I agree to take appropriate steps to ensure that any public statement, either oral or written, which are not 
official statement of NSF, are properly qualified as the position or opinion of me or my organization and 
not NSF or the Joint Committee or Task Group.  I also agree to not make any statements that mislead or 
have the tendency to mislead. 
 

i. If I am removed as a Joint Committee member or my authorization to access Confidential Business 
Information is removed, I am still under obligation not to reveal Confidential Business Information 
previously received and to not in any way use (either personally or by your organization) such 
Confidential Business Information. 
 

j. The restrictions regarding Confidential Business Information in Sections 7.d through 7.g above shall apply 
for a period of five (5) years following receipt, except that as to trade secrets the restrictions shall apply 
until such time it is no longer a trade secret. 
 

k. I affirm that in my duties as a Joint Committee member, I shall represent only the interest category and 
role under which my membership was granted.  If during the course of the performance of duties, I am 
unable to comply with this requirement, I shall abstain from active discussion and voting relative to the 
issue in question. 
 

l. This Agreement shall be governed by, and interpreted under Michigan law, without reference to its 
conflicts of law provisions.  Any legal action relating to this Agreement and/or my participation as an Joint 
Committee or Task Group member shall be brought in the United States District Court for the Eastern 
District of Michigan if it has subject matter jurisdiction, and otherwise in the appropriate District Court or 
Circuit Court in the State of Michigan as provided in the venue statutes of the State of Michigan.  The 
parties waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purpose of carrying out this provision 
and agree not to invoke the jurisdiction of any other court. 

 
I understand this application is a voluntary request to NSF to review my qualifications for approval as a Joint 
Committee member. 
 
I certify that all the information contained in this application is correct to the best of my knowledge and I understand 
that any false statement or misrepresentation on this application may result in the denial or revocation of any NSF 
approval (in addition to any other remedy available to NSF). 
 
Intending to be legally bound, I agree individually and on behalf of the organization I represent to all of the foregoing. 
 

Applicant's Signature                        Date    

 
4836-1061-5673, v. 2 



NSF International 75th anniversary Timeline/History 

 

1944 

•Walter F. Snyder, Dr. Henry Vaughan and Dr. Nathan Sinai incorporate the National Sanitation 
Foundation (NSF) as a non-profit organization at the University of Michigan’s School of Public Health in 
Ann Arbor, Michigan to develop national standards for commercial foodservice equipment. 

 

 

1946 

• The Committee of Consultants on Sanitation (now known as the Council of Public Health Consultants) 
meets for first time in Cleveland, Ohio. 

 

 

 

 



1948  

•Approximately 300 representatives of government, industry and the public discuss sanitation issues at 
the First National Sanitation Clinic in Ann Arbor, Michigan.   

 

1952 

•The first food equipment standards are introduced: NSF Standard 1 for soda fountain/luncheonette 
equipment and NSF Standard 2 for food service equipment. 

 

•The National Sanitation Foundation Testing Laboratory (NSFTL) is established as a separate corporation 
to test compliance with NSF standards. 



1953 

•Standard 3 Spray-Type Dishwashing Machines (now known as NSF/ANSI 3: Commercial Warewashing 
Equipment) is published as part of NSF’s food equipment standards. 

 

 

1958 

•What is now known as NSF/ANSI 4: Commercial Cooking, Rethermalization and Powered Hot Food 
Holding and Transport Equipment is developed. 

 

 

 

 



1959 

•What is now known as NSF/ANSI 5: Water Heaters, Hot Water Supply Boilers, and Heat Recovery 
Equipment and NSF/ANSI 6: Dispensing Freezers is developed. 
 

1961 

•The standard for commercial powered food preparation equipment (currently known as NSF/ANSI 8: 
Commercial Powered Food Preparation Equipment) is developed. 
 

1966 

•NSF/ANSI 7: Commercial Refrigerators and Storage Freezers, NSF/ANSI 18: Manual Food and Beverage 
Dispensing Equipment and NSF/ANSI 20: Commercial Bulk Milk Dispensing Equipment are published. 
 

1969 

•NSF/ANSI 29: Detergent and Chemical Feeders for Commercial Spray-Type Dishwashing Machines is 
published. 
 

May 1978 

•Two additional food equipment standards, NSF/ANSI 51: Food Equipment Materials and NSF/ANSI 52: 
Supplemental Flooring, are published. 
 

1990 

•NSF and NSF Testing Laboratories merge to form NSF International. 
•Organization name changes from National Sanitation Foundation to NSF International. 
  

1999 

•New state-of-the-art headquarters and labs open in Ann Arbor, Michigan. 

  



















































































































































































 
 
 

TAB SET C 
 

Existing Business 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Joint Committee on Food Equipment  
Meeting Summary 

NSF Headquarters, Ann Arbor Michigan 
August 22 – 23, 2018 

This document is part of the NSF International Standards process and is for NSF Committee uses 
only.  It shall not be reproduced, or circulated, or quoted, in whole or in part, outside of NSF 
activities, except with the approval of NSF.   
 

Distributed on September 24, 2018                                                                Page 21 of 24 
 

LIST ACTION ITEMS: 
 
 
Tab F2 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-08 – Change of NOTE in 5.2.1 of Standard 8 
 A.Rose to send directly to JC Approval Ballot 
 
Tab F3 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-09 – Change of NOTE in 5.4.2 of Standard 21 
 A.Rose to send directly to JC Approval Ballot 
 
Tab F1 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-07 – Glass in Bi-Metal Thermometers 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Materials 
 
Tab F4 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-10 – Food Shields 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Shields 
 
Tab F5 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-11 – Change of NOTE in Section 5.2.2 of Standard 5  
 A.Rose to send to TG on Standard 5 
 
Tab F6 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-12 – Change of NOTE in Section 7 of Standard 5  
 A.Rose to send directly to JC ballot 
 
Tab F7 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-13 – Potable Water Definition  
 A.Rose to send to Standard 12 Task Group 
 
Tab F8 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-14 – ICP Changed to CIP  
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
 
Tab F10 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-15 – Tubing in Cappuccino Machines 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Hot Food Equipment 
 
Tab F11 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-16 – New Biofilm Cleaning Standard  
 A.Rose to withdraw Issue Paper 
 
Tab H1 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-17 – Glass in Food Zone 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 
 
Tab H2 – New Issue Paper FE-2018-18 – Dinnerware versus Tableware 
 A.Rose to send to TG on Food Equipment Fabrication 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mperez
Rectangle

Mperez
Typewritten Text
August 2018 Annual Meeting Action Items

Mperez
Typewritten Text
JCFE ballot 09-11-2019 33:0:0; CPHC ballot pending (not scheduled)

Mperez
Typewritten Text
JCFE ballot 09-12-2019 33:0:0; CPHC ballot 10-08-2018 14:1:0;issue paper withdrawn 05-03-2019 & replaced with FE-2019-05

Mperez
Typewritten Text
to Standard 51 TG 08-23-2018

Mperez
Typewritten Text
to Standard 2 foodshields TG 08-23-2019

Mperez
Typewritten Text
JCFE ballot 01-29-2019 27:0:0; CPHC ballot 02-22-2019 15:0:0

Mperez
Typewritten Text
to Standard 12 TG 08-23-2018

Mperez
Typewritten Text
Standard 2 JCFE ballot 03-26-2019 26:0:0CPHC ballot 05-31-2019 15:0:0Standard 170 JCFE ballot 03-26-2019 26:0:0CPHC ballot 07-02-2019 12:0:0

Mperez
Typewritten Text
JCFE ballot 05-08-2019; CPHC ballot pending (not scheduled)



Issue Papers Received and 
Assigned Since Previous JC 

Meeting 
To be discussed during each respective Task Group Update 
 
 

Issue Document/Title TG Assigned 
FE-2018-19 - Normative Reference Update Standard 3 
FE-2019-01 - Metric Practice Reference 
Update 

Standard 7 

FE-2019-03 – Metric Practice Reference 
Update 

All FE Standards 

FE-2019-04 – Surface Cleanability Standard 51 
FE-2019-07 – Dinnerware versus Tableware Standard 2 

 
Yellow Highlights indicate balloted, completed and published language 
 
 
 
 
 

Standards Published Since 
Previous JC Meeting 

 
 
3 – Warewashing Equipment 
6 – Dispensing Freezers 
12 – Automatic Ice Making Equipment 
 
 



 
 
 
TAB SET D 

 
Task Group Updates 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TAB D1 
 

Standard 2 – Food Equipment 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Mike Anthony General Interest Observer
Tracy Artley University of Michigan General Interest Observer
Theodore Barber Theodore Barber & Company User Member
Swati Bhatt Los Angeles County Public Health / Regulatory Member
Jim Brady Wawa, Inc. User Group Chair
Paul Brown W.A. Brown & Son, Inc. General Interest Observer
Jeff Burnett Perlick Industry Observer
Pierre Clemons Cambro Industry Observer
Steve Combs Everidge General Interest Observer
Millicent Crenshaw Cambro Industry Member
Tiffany Curry Franke Foodservice Solutions, Inc. Industry Member
Kelli Fall NSF International General Interest Observer
Burl Finkelstein Kason Industries Industry Member
Gilad Gabbay MDPH/BEH Food Protection Program Public Health / Regulatory Member
Tony Gagliardi Consultant - Public Health/Regulatory User Member
Beth Glynn Starbucks Coffee Company User Member
Jim Godiska Follett Corp. General Interest Observer
Cullen Hackler Porcelain Enamel Institute General Interest Observer
J. Jumalon Wake County North Carolina General Interest Observer
Michael King Solid Surface Association of America General Interest Observer
Mike Kohler NSF International User Member
Sarah Krol NSF International General Interest Observer
Bob Kuhn Carlisle Industry Member
James Leonard Princess Cruises General Interest Observer
Girvin Liggans Food and Drug Administration Public Health / Regulatory Member
Gary Maxon The Delfield Co. Industry Member
Keith McKowen University of Michigan General Interest Observer
Thomas McNeil U.S. Army User Member
Jon Murray Structural Concepts Corporation General Interest Observer
Dipak Negandhi A.O. Smith Industry Member
Massoud Neshan Southern CaseArts Industry Member
Michael Perez Baring Industries User Member
Bernard Poton Intertek General Interest Observer
Robert Powitz R.W. Powitz & Assoc., P.C. General Interest Observer
Allan Rose NSF International General Interest Secretariat
Willard Sickles InterMetro Industries Corp. Industry Member
Joshua Spencer Stone Spectrum User Observer
Mardy Wagner BKI General Interest Observer
Jeff Wright Ferro Corp. General Interest Observer
Amanda Zeoli NSF International General Interest Observer

Task Group on Food Equipment Fabrication (Downloaded May 31, 2019)

 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper # FE-2018-17 Glass in Food Zone Issue Document 
Summary Status 

Consider adding standards related to 
glass and ceramics to NSF standard 2.  

In Process (Teleconference on April 16) 

Issue Paper # FE-2019-06 Slotted Fasteners in Marine Equipment 
Discuss the use of slotted fasteners New Issue June 2019, not discussed 

Issue Paper # FE-2019-07 Dinnerware vs. Tableware 
Standard 2 applications Balloted by JC 

Issue Paper # FE-2019-03 Metric Practice Normative Reference 
 

Reference was outdated Balloted by JC; CPHC ballot in process 
 
Closed Issue Papers:  
 

 
Issue Title 

Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
FE-2018-18: Dinnerware vs. Tableware Standard 170 Complete November? 
FE-2017-14: IPC changed to CIP Complete November 

 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
Conference Calls 
 

1. December 4, 2018 
2. February 20, 2019 
3. April 16, 2019 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Topic 1 Change “ICP to CIP” (2i34r3 and 170i24r2) 
 
 
JC Ballot 26-0 
CPHC Ballot 15-0 
 
Standard 2 Application 
5.1.3 
5.1.4 
5.52 
6.1.2.2 
A.1 Summary 
 
Standard 170 Application 

 
 
 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Topic 2: Change term dinnerware to tableware 
 
Standard 170 Application 
 
Ballot 170i25r3 JC Vote: 29-0 
 

 
 
Ballot 170i25r4 JC Vote: 28-0 

 
 
Standard 2 Application 
 
Ballot 2i33r1 JC Vote: In progress at time of report submission 
 
 
 1 General  
•  
 
1.2 Scope  
Equipment covered by this Standard includes, but is not limited to, bakery, cafeteria, kitchen, and pantry 
units and other food handling and processing equipment such as tables and components, counters, 
dinnerware tableware, hoods, shelves, and sinks. 
 
5 Design and construction  
•  
 
5.61 Identification mark  
Dinnerware Tableware products shall have a permanent marking or an identification plate that denotes 
the manufacturer's name and product model number. If the manufacturer has more than one production 
location for the dinnerware tableware product, then the production location shall be identified on the 
marking or identification plate.  
Rationale: now that that definition for Dinnerware has been replaced with Tableware win Standard 170, the logical 
next step is to replace the use of the term Dinnerware with Tableware in Standard 2. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
Topic 3 Include glassware and ceremics in Standard 2 
 

1. Proliferation of this full service category and subsequent equipment/equipment 
accessories has elevated the need to review possible glassware/ceramics 
material/design protocols. 

2. Starbucks has developed their own in light of no other commercially applicable 
standards. 

3. Future review of P392 (Tableware for Home Use) however: 
a. Its test protocol is not commercially focused and therefore has no health 

department or code applications in its test protocol development. 
b. Strict food code alignment would be required in any review. 

4. Protocol criteria evolution would dictate the Standard in which such criteria may be 
applicable: 

a. Design criteria-Standard 2 
b. Material durability-Standard 51 

 
Topic 4 Metric practice normative reference needs updating 
 
Ballot 2i35r1  
JC Vote: 27-0 
CPHC: In Progress at time of report submission 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note that some standards have already been updated such as Standard 3 and Standard 7. 
 
Topic 5 Standard 2 Task Group Chair 
 
Burl Finkelstein has graciously agreed to chair this task group upon my retirement in November.  
His years on the task group pre dates my NSF participation, has been a consistent and active 
participant in teleconferences, TG face to face meetings (yes, we used to have those) and 
ballots.  He has vast experience and knowledge of equipment/accessories covered under the 
scope of standard 2 as well as the detail contained in NSF standards. 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name TG on Food Shields 
Chair Pep Matus 
Date 08/14/19 

 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, public 
agency) 

Member/observer 

Al Alderman Industry Observer 
Rodney Anderson Industry Observer 
Michael Perez User Member 
Andrew Padden Industry Member 
Dave Van Otterloo Industry Observer 
Tony Gagliardi User Member 
Randy Lines Industry Member 
Jeff Differt Industry Observer 
John Scanlon Industry Member 
Burl Finkelstein General Interest Observer 
Gilad Gabbay Public Health / Regulatory Observer 
Anthony Carotenuto User Observer 
Kelli Fall General Interest Observer 
Mike Kohler General Interest Member 
Sarah Krol General Interest Observer 
Amanda Zeoli General Interest Observer 
Al Rose General Interest Secretariat 
Chris Cummings Industry Observer 
Brian Ozment Industry Member 
Scott Edlein Industry Observer 
Tom Johnson General Interest Member 
Dr. Robert Powitz General Interest Member 
Connie Dickson User Member 
Jon Murray General Interest Observer 
Gary Maxon Industry Member 
Thomas McNeil User Member 
Pep Matus Industry Group Chair 
Peter Roever Industry Observer 

 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper # FE-2018-10 
Summary Status 

Revision of food shield standard to 
change self-service food shield 
accessibility and relax the current 
standard back to the pre-NSF/ANSI 2-
2008 standard. 

Discussion was started in one TG meeting 
on July 16, 2019.  TG agreed to reopen 
the topic on self-service food shields and 
agreed that the discussion should 
continue. 

 
Closed Issue Papers:  

 
Issue Paper # 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
 
None at this time. 
 
 

  

 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
The TG held one meeting on July 16, 2019.  After review of the issue paper, it was 
determined by the TG that the topic of self-service food shields and accessibility should 
be continued.   
 
It was agreed during the TG meeting that anthropometrical data will be further reviewed 
in further meetings do determine if the standard should be modified. 
 
The secretariat and TG agreed to schedule another meeting following the 2019 JC 
Annual Meeting. 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name FE Task Group on Figures & Diagrams 
Chair John Scanlon 
Date 8/9/19 

 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, public 
agency) 

Member/observer 

John Scanlon Industry (Hatco corporation) Member - Chair 
Mr.Jeff Burnett Industry (Perlick) Member 
Mr. Michael 
Perez 

User (Baring Industries) (JC Chair) Observer 

Mr. Robert 
Casey 

User (Publix) Member 

Ms.Tiffany 
Curry  

General interest (Franke Foodservice 
Soluions, Inc.) 

Member 

Mr. Frank 
Cuaderno 

Industry (Mars Air) Member 

Mr. Mike Kohler User (NSF) Member 
Mr. Burl 
Finkelstein 

General interest (Kason industries) Member 

Mr. David 
Johnson 

Industry (Berner Corporation) Member 

Mr. Pep Matus Industry (Versa-guard) Member 
Mr. Nick 
Mazzino 

Industry (Vitamix) Member 

Mr. Brent Miller User (Dairy Queen) Member 
Mr. Eric Moore General interest (Testo Solutions USA, 

Inc. 
Member 

Mr. Jon Murray General interest (Structural Concepts 
Corp.) 

Member 

Mr. Syed Rizvi Industry (Cornelius, Inc) Member 
Mr. Stephen 
Shaefer 

General interest ( Hoshizaki America, 
Inc.) 

Member 

Mr. Charlie 
Souhrada 

General interest (NAFEM) Member 

Ms. Amanda 
Zeoli 

Secretariat (NSF) Observer 

 
Open Issue Papers:  
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Issue Paper # 
Summary Status 

No issue Paper. This task submitted at 
the 2018 JC Meeting during open 
discussion. 

Open 

 
Closed Issue Papers:   

None 

 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
On 2-1-19, the task group on Figures and Diagrams met to discuss the goals of the 
group. The discussion consisted of the strategy for tackling the project, ongoing meeting 
format, and a cadence for future meetings. As a guide for the group, J. Scanlon 
proposed the following text as a definition of scope: 
 
The purpose of this task group is to add consistency, clarity, and understanding 
to the figures and drawings in existing Food Equipment standards, by updating 
and modernizing those utilizing established CAD programs. 
 
There are 57 individual figures to update across all standards. 
The plan is to initiate the project with the drawings in standard two, because it has the 
majority of drawings, and then continue with drawings in other standards, based on 
decreasing number of drawings in each standard.  
 
Mike Kohler has been working directly with the Graphic Designer, Katie Fogleboch at 
Birdbrook Design. On May 13, Mike shared the first batch of revised prints with the 
group. The group reviewed and discussed these on 6/14/19. 
 
The continuing strategy is for group to review the updated prints in batches, and bring 
any concerns or comments to the subsequent meeting. This will continue until all figures 
have been redrawn. 
 
 



 
 
 

TAB D2 
 

Standard 3 –  
Warewashing Equipment 

 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name TG on Warewash Equipment, NSF/ANSI 3 
Chair Joel Hipp 
Date August 21, 2019 

 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, 
public agency) 

Member/observer 

Joel Hipp Industry Member - Chair 
Russell Payzant Industry Member 
John Hockaday Industry Member 
Luis Rodriguez Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Gideon Katz Industry Member 
Tony Gagliardi Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Andrew Jensen Industry Member 
Girvin Liggans Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Christopher Winkler Industry Member 
April Gravelle Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Dwayne Becknell Industry Member 
Mike Kohler User Member 
Michéle Samarya-Timm Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Al Rose General Interest Observer – Secretariat 

 
Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper # FE-2008-5 
Summary Status 

Proposed additional food soil load test 
for rinseability (soil redeposition test). 

Challenge is finding quantitative measure 
of rinse water effectiveness.  ATP test 
method scratched.  Sesame seed test 
from EU scratched (EN50593).  NSF team 
working on colorimeter test method.  

 

Issue Paper # FE-2017-10 
Summary Status 

Proposal to allow chemical sanitizing 
solutions that are used in accordance 
with, and at concentrations in 
compliance with EPA registered label 
use instructions. 

Two straw ballots. First yielded 
substantive negative resulting in rewording 
and new straw ballot.  Second straw ballot 
passed in May.  Issue will now be placed 
on JC ballot.   



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
Closed Issue Papers: 

 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
Air gap updates and normative updates passed JC ballots resulting in NSF3-2019 
published in April. 
 
TG meetings held April 30th & July 9th. 
 
Rinseability test – NSF team experimenting with colorimeter on glasses.  Hand-held 
device can measure specular included (SPIN) and specular excluded (SPEX) reflected 
light in 15-30 seconds.  Cost is approximately $4,300.  Challenge is to find suitable soil 
and refine the test method.  In addition, goal is to set limits such that currently Certified 
models will not be disqualified.     
 
Chemical Sanitizing Solutions – Wording to be on JC ballot: 

 
 
 
Next meeting - September 

Issue Paper # FE-2017-X 
Summary Status 

Cutlery cleaning system using sterile 
corncob abrasive and heated dry 
requested to be NSF Certified. 

Proponent withdrew issue due to 
complexity of meeting NSF requirements. 

Issue Paper # FE-2017-3 
Summary Status 

Proposal to add wording to protect air 
gaps from “contamination” rather than 
“suds, spray, splash and flooding”. 

TG straw ballot passed.  JC ballot passed.  
Updated wording includes bullet format 
and clarification that air gap need not be 
readily visible from outside the machine. 



 
 
 

TAB D3 
 

Standard 4 –  
Commercial Cooking, 

Rethermalization and Powered 
Hot Food Holding, and 
Transport Equipment 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name TG on Hot Food Equipment (NSF/ANSI 4) 
Chair Jonathan Brania 
Date July 17, 2019 

 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category  
(user, industry, public agency) 

Member/observer 

Jonathan Brania User Member, Chair 
Al Rose General Interest Observer, Secretariat 
Tiffany Curry Industry Member 
Jeff Differt Industry Member 
Massoud Neshan Industry Member 
Syed Rizvi Industry Member 
Willard Sickles, PE Industry Member 
Swati Bhatt Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Sara Burton-Zick Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Tony Gagliardi User Member 
Beth Glynn User Member 
Mike Kohler User Member 
Thomas McNeil User Member 
********************** ******************************************** ************************** 
Amanda Zeoli  Observer 
Chris Boryca General Interest Observer 
Steve Combs General Interest Observer 
Kelli Fall General Interest Observer 
Sarah Krol General Interest Observer 
Lee Moomaw General Interest Observer 
Eric Moore General Interest Observer 
Jon Murray General Interest Observer 
Michael Perez General Interest Observer 
Dr. Robert Powitz General Interest Observer 
Ann Willems General Interest Observer 
Jim Wismar Industry  Observer 
Shayna Dye Public Health/Regulatory Observer 
Gilad Gabbay Public Health/Regulatory Observer 
J. Julamon Public Health/Regulatory Observer 
Susan Sutherland Public Health / Regulatory Observer 
Giorgio Beretta User Observer 
Jim Brady User Observer 
Nicholas Unger User Observer 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper # 
Summary Status 

FE-2012-3: Merchandisers – Energy Efficiency 
A recent JC ballot yielded 22 affirmative votes, 3 
negative votes, 1 abstention, and many comments.  
The task group has met three times since the ballot 
and many of the comments have been addressed, 
although a few still remain.     

The Task Group is in the 
process of reviewing and 
resolving comments.   

FE-2016-4: Food warming language clarification 
Issue to better clarify when the new label for food 
warming equipment must be applied and when testing 
can be waived.  Many products are identified for 
warming, but only a few should need the label based 
on their exclusive use with nonpotentially hazardous 
foods.   

Wording revised based on 
TG discussion.  JC ballot 
closes on 7/22.  Status as of 
7/17: 23:0:0 with no 
comments.   

FE-2018-6: Backflow prevention boilerplate 
Boilerplate revision for backflow prevention devices, 
to add air gaps as an acceptable option.  The issue 
was discussed with objections from TG meeting 
attendees.   

Passed JC ballot: 30:0:0 with 
no comments. 

FE-2018-15: Milk tubing of cappuccino machines 
Proposed updates for milk tubing requirements of 
cappuccino machines, clarifying when such tubing is 
exempt from performance test requirements. 

Passed Joint Committee 
ballot (28:0:0) with one 
editorial comment. 

 
Closed Issue Papers:  

Issue Paper # 
Summary Status of completion 

(completed, tabled, etc) 
Probable 

Publication 
Date  

NONE 
 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
The Task Group for Hot Food Equipment has met two (2) times since the last Joint 
Committee meeting. 



 
 
 

TAB D4 
 

Standard 7 –  
Commercial refrigerators and 

freezers 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name Standard 7 
Chair Tony Gagliardi 
Date August 19, 2019 

 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, public 
agency) 

Member/observer 

Tony Gagliardi Consultant (Public Health) Member - Chair 
Mike Kohler NSF International (User) Member 
Jon Murray Structural Concepts Corp. (Industry) Member 
Dipak Negandhi Manitowoc Foodservice (Industry) Member 
Jeff Bauman Continental Refrigeration (Industry) Member 
Thomas Jumalon Wake Co. Health Dept.  (P. H. ) Member 
Jon Murray Structural Concepts Corp.  (Industry)  Member 
Jonathan Brania UL, Inc. (User) Member 
Brent Miller Dairy Queen (User) Member 
Fred Minelli Hill Phoenix  (Industry) Member 
StephenSchaefer Hoshizaki America, Inc (Industry) Member 
Massoud 
Neshan 

Southern Case Arts (Industry) Member 

Bill Larson Nor-Lake, Inc. (Industry) Member 
Gary Maxon The Delfield Co. (Industry) Member 
Jim Brady 
Bill Sickles 
Alyssa Spradley 

WAWA, Inc 
InterMetro Industries (Industry) 
NE Tri County Health District  (P.H.) 

Member 
Member 
Member 

Al Rose NSF International (General Interest) Observer – Secretariat 
Guy Senter Bally Refrigerated Boxes, Inc. (G. I)  Observer 
Jeff Bauman Continental Refrigerator (G.I.)  Observer 
Sara Burton-Zick Dupage Co. Health Dept.  (P. H.) Observer 
Girvin Liggans FDA (P. H.) Observer 
John Scanlon Hatco Corp. (P. H.) Observer 
James Patterson Health Learning (User) Observer 
James O’Donnell Hussman Corp. (Industry) Observer 
Steve Combs International Cold Storage(G.I.) Observer 
Eric Brasseur Little Caesars Enterprises (User) Observer 
Cheryl Appell Manitowoc Foodservice (Industry) Observer 
Larry Eils NAMA (Industry) Observer 
Anthony 
Carotenuto 

Navy and Marine Corps Public Health 
Center (User) 

Observer 

Kelli Fall NSF International (G.I.) Observer 
Sarah Krol NSF International (G.I.) Observer 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Ann Willems NSF International (G.I.) Observer 
Donald Mers Ohio Dept of Agriculture (G.I.) Observer 
Robert Powitz R. W. Powitz and Assoc. (P. H.) Observer 
Victor Anderson Structural Concepts Corp. (Industry) Observer 
Mary Dane Traulsen, & Co. (G.I.) Observer 
Michael Perez Baring Industries (G.I.) Observer 
Mike Anthony U of Michigan (G.I.) Observer 
Thomas Jumalon Wake Co Health (P. H.) Observer 
Paul Klouse Southern Nevada Health District (P. H.) Observer 

Jim Godiska            Follett Corp. (G. I.)          Observer 
Eric Moore  Testo Solutions, USA, Inc.  (G.I.)        Observer  
Mark Sanford Unified Brands   (User)         Observer 
Keith McKowen U. of Michigan   (G.I.)         Observer 
Lee Moomaw Intertek      (G.I.)          Observer 
Bob Corrao  J.M.Smucker Co.  (Industry)        Observer 
Amanda Zeoli      NSF International            Observer   
 
Open Issue Papers:  

 
 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
 
7i17-Revising standards to deal with 
multi-zone refrigeration units and 
ambient air temperature requirements 
for performance testing.  
 
 

 
Issue Paper was 
discussed in 
teleconference 7/25/19 
no resolutions as yet. 

 
Unknown 

 
 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
 
7i20r1-Revising the Standards to add 
drains to the interior of service and 
display refrigerators     

 

 
Approved by TG and 
sent to the JC 

 
Unknown 

 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
 
7i21r2- Revising the standards to 
deal seams within a refrigerated 
cabinet 

 
 

Resolved negative 
comment on ballot. 
Revision approved sent 
to CPHC 

 
Unknown 

 
 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
 
7i18- No load vs ASHRAE 72 
Performance Testing  

 
 

Issue discussed and 
withdrawn by proponent 

 
NA 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
 
7i21r2- Revising the standards to 
deal with seams within a refrigerated 
cabinet 

 
 

Resolved negative 
comment on ballot. 
Revision approved sent 
to CPHC 

 
Unknown 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
 
7i22- Revising the standards to 
Update Normative References 

 
 

Revision approved sent 
to CPHC 

 
Unknown 

 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
This task group was a bit busier this year having 3 teleconferences since the last 
meeting of the Joint committee.  Several issues were resolved and sent to the CPHC. 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

A discussion of labeling for multi zone refrigerators was initiated at the last 
teleconference on June 25, 2019. Several ideas were put forward in the meeting but no 
resolutions were decided on.  Discussions will continue in the near future. 



 
 
 
 

CDC Vessel Sanitation 
Presentation 

 
 

CDR Luis O. Rodriguez 
 
 
 



Reception at
Old German

117 S. Ashley
Ann Arbor 48104

(located in the cellar of Grizzly 
Peak Brewing Co., corner of 
S. Ashley and Washington)

www.oldgerman.net
(734) 741-7554

FE Joint Committee Reception
• Wed, August 21
• 7:30 – 10:00 pm

•Shuttles provided to and from

http://www.oldgerman.net/og/old-german


 
 
 

TAB D5 
 

Standard 12 –  
Automatic Ice Making Equipment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TAB D6 
 

Standard 25 –  
Vending machines for food and 

beverages 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name TG on Vending Machines 
Chair Dipak J. Negandhi, P.E. 
Date July 31, 2019 
 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, public agency) Member/observer 
D. Negandhi Industry Member - Chair 
J. Collins Industry Member 
T. Gagliardi User Member 
P. McCrory User Member 
D. Gallman Industry Member 
G. Liggans Public Health/ Regulatory Member 
V. Siede Trade Association Member 
S. Schaefer Industry Member 
B. Corraro Industry Member 
L. Eils Industry Member 
K. Fall General Interest Member 
B. Laird Industry Member 
T. Johnson User Member 
T. McNeil User Member 
J. Brania General Interest Member 
M. Kohler General Interest Member 
   
   
Al Rose General Interest Observer – Secretariat 
 
Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper #  
Summary Status 

Issue Paper to harmonize NAMA 
standards for Vending Machines with 
NSF-25 
 

Draft of harmonized NSF 25 standard was 
reviewed at the TG meeting on July 29, 
2019. It is scheduled for a straw ballot of 
the TG after revision to the draft are 
complete 

 
Closed Issue Papers:  

 
Issue Paper # 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  
NONE 
 
 
 

  

 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 

1. Over the past 2 years, Items unique to each standard were identified and then 
discussed / reviewed by the TG.  

2. Many items of NAMA standard are addressed in other NSF Standard (NSF-2, 7, 
51) 

3. Additions and changes to NSF-25, based on each of the NAMA section (100 
through 900) were approved by a straw ballot of the TG 

4. A draft of harmonized NSF-25 was completed in June 2019 and reviewed at the 
TG meeting on July 29, 2019. This is expected to go for TG straw ballot in 
2019Q3 

 



 
 
 

TAB D7 
 

Standard 51 –  
Food Equipment Materials 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name Food Equipment Materials 
Chair Bill Sickles 
Date August 22, 2019 

 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, 
public agency) 

Member/observer 

Swati Bhatt Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Jim Brady User Observer 
Rex Brandt Industry Observer 
Jonathan Brania User Member 
Jeff Burnett Industry Observer 
Sara Burton-Zick Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Steve Combs General Interest Observer 
Kelli Fall General Interest Observer 
Burl Finkelstein Industry Member 
Tony Gagliardi User Member 
Jim Godiska General Interest Observer 
Eric Halberg Industry Observer 
Andreas Helm Trade Association Observer 
Joel Hipp Industry Observer 
Tom Johnson General Interest Observer 
J. Jumalon, R.E.H.S. Public Health / Regulatory Observer 
Michael King Trade Association Observer 
Mike Kohler User Member 
Sarah Krol General Interest Observer 
James Leonard, MPH, LEHP User Observer 
Girvin Liggans Public Health / Regulatory Observer 
Thomas McNeil User Observer 
Danielle Melaragno User Observer 
Jon Murray General Interest Observer 
Dipak Negandhi, PE Industry Member 
Massoud Neshan Industry Member 
Michael Perez User Member 
Robert Powitz Public Health / Regulatory Observer 
Allan Rose General Interest Secretariat 
Michéle Samarya-Timm Public Health / Regulatory Member 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Stephen Schaefer General Interest Member 
Willard Sickles, P.E. Industry Group Chair 
Joshua Spencer User Observer 
Steve Tackitt Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Joe Wallace Industry Member 
Ann Willems General Interest Observer 
Jeff Wright Industry Member 
Amanda Zeoli General Interest Observer 

 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
 
 
 
 
Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper # FE-2018-7 Glass in Bi-Metal Thermometers 
Summary Status 

Request from Mingle Instrument Limited 
to revise the test requirements for glass 
in thermometers.  The claim is no 
thermometer glass will pass the current 
requirements.  Issue Paper presented at 
2018 JC meeting. 
 

Under review by TG.  TG is considering a 
rewrite to the standard to state: “glass 
tested must be same thickness as the 
glass used in manufacturing.”  Then 
circulate language to thermometer 
manufacturers for comments. 

 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
Closed Issue Papers:  

Issue Paper # FE-2015-8  
Summary Status of completion  Probable 

Publication Date  
Added new definition to NSF 170 for 
the term “Heated Organic Coating.”  

TG Straw Ballot passed 
November 2018; 
JC Ballot passed 
December 2018; 
CPHC Ballot passed 
March 2019. 

August 2019 

 
Issue Paper # FE-2015-6 

Summary Status of completion  Probable 
Publication Date  

New Section added to NSF 51, 
“4.2.6 Solid Surface Materials”; and 
added “solid surface material” 
definition to NSF 170. 
 

TG Straw Ballot passed 
December 2018; 
JC Ballot passed  
January 2019; 
CPHC Ballot passed 
March 2019. 

August 2019 

 
Issue Paper # FE-2019-4 

Summary Status of completion  Probable 
Publication Date  

Removed the current “surface 
cleanability” reference from Section 
5.1 and removed Section 7 Surface 
Cleanability (Test Method and 
Acceptance Criteria) from NSF 51. 

TG Straw Ballot passed  
April 2019; 
JC Ballot passed        
May 2019; 
CPHC Ballot passed 
June 2019. 

September 2109 

 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
Pushed to resolve negative comments on ballots and get ballots through the CPHC. 
 
After removing the current surface cleanability test from Sections 5.1 and 7 of NSF 51, 
several comments were received about what replaces it.  Is something new required? 
 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
Backup info: 
 
FE-2015-8 Heated Organic Coating: NSF 170 Glossary of Food Equipment 
Terminology: 
 
3.xxx Heated Organic Coating: An organic coating applied to a surface where 
operating temperatures of the appliance may result in blistering, softening, or other 
heat-related degradation of the coating. 

 
Rationale: the creation of a definition to support the newly created term for Heated Organic 
Coating in section 6.2.2.4 of Standard 51. 

 

 
 
FE-2015-6 Solid Surface Materials: NSF 51 Food Equipment Materials: 
 
4.2.6 Solid Surface Materials 
 
4.2.6.1 Solid surface materials shall meet food zone requirements. 
 
4.2.6.2 Solid surface materials shall be composed of uniform material throughout. 
 

Rationale: Food zone requirements are applicable to all solid surface materials to avoid potential 
misuse in the field. If the material meets food zone requirements it will be suitable for use in all 
zones without the need to choose the correct product for the given application. A requirement for 
the material to be uniform throughout eliminates the possibility of multilayered, dissimilar 
materials that may be more prone to separation and failure. 

 

NSF 170 Glossary of Food Equipment Terminology: 
 
3.xxx solid surface material: a solid material with uniform composition throughout 
used in the manufacture of equipment surfaces.  
 

NOTE - Solid surface materials include polyester, acrylic, engineered stone and quartz/resin 
based materials 

 
Rationale: this definition is proposed for adding clarity to the newly proposed language for Solid 
Surface Materials in Standard 51. 

 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
FE-2019-4 surface cleanability:  NSF 51 Food Equipment Materials: 

 

5.1 Materials shall be smooth and easily cleanable. 
 
If a material is textured so that it may hinder the removal of soil during cleaning, the 
material shall meet 
the surface cleanability requirements in 7. 
 
 
7 Surface cleanability 
 
7.1 Test method 
 
When required by this Standard, the surface cleanability of a textured material shall be 
determined by quantification of the amount of applied soil that remains on a material 
sample after cleaning. Four material test plaques (5.0 x 5.0 in [130 x 130 mm]) shall 
be washed with a non-ionic, low foaming, powdered mechanical washer detergent and 
water at 162 ± 2 °F (72 ± 1 °C) and shall be air dried. A standardized synthetic lard 
comprised of glycerol trioleate (62.5%), glycerol tristearate (37.5%), and trace 
amounts of 14C-labeled glycerol trioleate (0.845 µCi/g of synthetic lard) and 14C-
labeled stearic acid (0.514 µCi/g of synthetic lard), shall be applied to the test plaques. 
The lard shall be heated to a liquid state, and 200 µL shall be applied to each of four 
equal quadrants on each test plaque. The lard shall be spread in a uniform layer onto 
the quadrants while under an infrared heat source to maintain the lard in a liquid state. 
The mass of soil on each quadrant shall be quantified using a beta radiation counting 
system; each quadrant shall have 20 ± 5 mg applied to its surface. The soiled test 
plaques shall be washed in a single-temperature, total-dump dishwashing machine 
having the following characteristics: 
 
… 

 
7.2 Acceptance criteria 
 
The average residual soil on the quadrants shall not exceed the predetermined control 
value for the zone in which the material is located. 
 

 

Zone Control value Examples 

food zone 30 µg stainless steel – No. 3 (100 grit) finish 
heated food zone 1750 µg cast iron 
ice bin materials 650 µg rotationally molded polyethylene 
splash and nonfood zone 220 µg hot rolled steel 

 



 
 
 

TAB D9 
 
Task Groups having no action 
since previous Face-to-Face 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name TG on “NSF/ANSI Standard 5” 
Chair J. Wallace 
Date 07/09/2019 
 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, public agency) Member/observer 
J. Wallace Industry Member - Chair 
   
   
   
   
   
Al Rose General Interest Observer – Secretariat 
 
Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper # 
Summary Status 

 Example: Task Group is close to submitting 
the proposed changes to the Joint 
Committee for approval. 

 
Closed Issue Papers:  

 
Issue Paper # 5i9r1 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication Date  

Note change in Section 7. 
 

CPHC Approved, March 2019 ??? 

 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
During the 2018 JC meeting, two issue papers were submitted, revising or removing 
“Notes” found in Section 5 and Section 7.  The Section 5 revision was approved by the 
JC but the Section 7 note had to be revised.  The revision was submitted and approved 
by the JC and CPHC approval was obtained in March, 2019. 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name Dispensing Equipment 
Chair Rex W. Brandt 
Date 7/11/19 

 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, public 
agency) 

Member/observer 

Rex Brandt Industry Member - Chair 
Cheryl Appell Industry Member 
Eric Brasseur User Member 
Bob Corrao User Member 
Shayna Dye Public Health / Regulatory Member 
Randy Dyer User Member 
Tony Gagliardi User Member 
Nick Greenway Industry Member 
Andreas Helm Trade Association Member 
Joel Hipp Industry Member 
Tom Johnson User Member 
Mike Kohler User Member 
Girvin Liggans Public Heath /Regulatory Member 
Brent Miller User Member 
Stephen 
Schaefer 

Industry Member 

Al Rose General Interest Observer – Secretariat 
Only voting members are shown above, observers who showed interest in this TG 
were left off to keep list manageable. 

 
Open Issue Papers: 
 
None 
 
Closed Issue Papers: (None since last JC meeting) 
 

Issue Paper # FE-2017-05 
Summary Status 

Proposed additional language add to Instruction plate based 
on new technology that allows cleaning and sanitization 
procedures to satisfy this requirement if incorporated into 
electronic display. (6i13r2) 

CPHC balloting closed 
6/2218, passed 

(17/0/0) 

 
  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
Issue Paper # FE-2017-14 

Summary Status 
Proposed change to “Dispensing lockout manual cleaning 
and sanitization frequency”, length of time for prepackage 
product, change from 42 days to 92 days. (6i14r3) 

CPHC balloting closed 
11/12/18, passed 

(15/0/0) 
 

NSF Standard 6 – 2018 Dispensing Freezers was released in December 2018 with 
revised language and requirements which came from Issue Paper FE-2017-05 and FE 
2017-14. 

No issue papers are on file which would require TG to work on at this time. 



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

Task Group Name FE Task Group on Air Curtains 
Chair John Scanlon 
Date 8/9/19 

 
 
Members: 
 

Name Category (user, industry, public 
agency) 

Member/observer 

John Scanlon Industry (Hatco corporation) Member - Chair 
Mr. Kirk 
Northcutt 

Industry (Auto-Chlor Systems) Member 

Mr. Michael 
Perez 

User (Baring Industries) (JC Chair) Observer 

Mr. David 
Johnson 

Industry (Berner International Corp.) Member 

Mr. Tony 
Gagliardi 

Public Health Member 

Mr. Frank 
Cuaderno 

Industry (Mars Air) Member 

Mr. Mike Kohler User (NSF) Member 
Mr. Steve 
Williams 

General interest (NSF) Member 

Mr. Thomas 
McNeil 

User (U.S. Army) Member 

Mr. Jonathan 
Hunt 

Industry (Williams Comfort products) Member 

Mr. Allan Rose Secretariat (NSF) Observer 
 
Open Issue Papers:  
 

Issue Paper # 
Summary Status 

  
 
Closed Issue Papers:  

 
Issue Paper # FE-2011-6 

Summary Status of completion 
(completed, tabled, etc) 

Probable 
Publication 

Date  



 
  

Task Group Chair Update 

 
Revisions were accepted and published 
on July 21, 2017 
 
 

 Complete. Published 
7/21/17 

 
 
Short Status of where task group has been since prior JC Face-to-Face: 
 
On 10-28-14 the task group on Air Curtains met to discuss the details of Issue Paper 
FE-2011-6 regarding the performance of Air Curtains as defined in NSF Standard 37 
Section 6.  
 
The two areas of concern in the standard raised by the Issue Paper are: 
 

1.) The wording of the Standard allows for designs that can have areas of low 
velocity, in the air curtain – most commonly where the blower motor is located at 
the upper part of the curtain. 

 
2.) The wording describing the test guidelines is not conclusive enough to prohibit 

very low velocities at the extreme sides of the air curtain 
 
 
Due to priority changes within NSF, the Task Group has not meet since February of 
2015. The group communicated requested changes via e-mail and straw ballots, 
leading to a successful publication of the revised standard in July 2017. 
 
There is one remaining task, to remove the definitions moved to Standard 170 from 
Standard 37. Since this is not substantive, I suggest this be done without convening the 
group. 



 
 
 

NAFEM 
Presentation 

 
Charlie Souhrada, CFSP 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 



 
 
 

TAB SET F 
 
New Issue Papers, Information 

Papers and Interpretation 
Requests 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TAB F1 
 

Issue Paper FE-2019-05 - 
Section 5.4 Cover Requirements  

 
Michael Perez 



 
   

Item No. FE-2019-05 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

NSF Standard(s) Impacted: NSF/ANSI 21 - 2015       
 
Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 
 
The purpose of this issue paper is to propose revise language for section 5.4 (cover requirements) in 
Standard 21. 
 
In May 1996, section 5.4.2 was rewritten and an informative note added: 
 
5.4.2 Thermoplastic refuse containers used primarily outdoors shall have a cover that, when in 
place, prevents water from entering the container opening. 
 

NOTE – Thermoplastic refuse containers used primarily indoors are exempt from this 
requirement. Covers with swinging-closure mechanisms are acceptable for indoor use. 

 
Rationale: Clarification of intent. The NSF Joint Committee on Food Equipment 

elected to allow covers with swinging-closure mechanisms. 
 
In 2018, a ballot for 21i7r1 (issue paper FE-2018-09) sought to change the informative note into a 
normative, numbered section in the standard. A negative ballot cast by a CPHC member and a comment 
from a JCFE member noted several flaws in section 5.4.  
 
Subsequently, I have withdrawn issue paper FE-2018-09. This new issue paper is submitted to revise all 
of section 5.4.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
Clearly state what action is needed: e.g., recommended changes to the standard(s) including the current 
text of the relevant section(s) indicating deletions by use of strike-out and additions by highlighting or 
underlining; e.g., reference of the issue to a Task Group for detailed consideration; etc.   
 
5.4 Cover requirements 
 
5.4.1 When in place, the cover shall overlap and continuously contact the container opening. 
 
5.4.2 Thermoplastic refuse containers used primarily outdoors shall have a cover that, when n 
place, prevents water from entering the container opening. 
 
NOTE: Thermoplastic refuse containers use primarily indoors are exempt from this requirement. 
Covers with swinging closure mechanisms are acceptable for indoor use. 
 
5.4.3 The cover shall minimize exterior gnawing edges. This requirement shall not apply to raised 
reinforcing members, decorative features, or lifting devices that do not have a common wall with 
the cover. 
 
 
 



 
   

Item No. FE-2019-05 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

5.4.4 The cover shall be designed and manufactured so that it provides for secure attachment to 
the container. The disengagement of the attachment device (for removable covers) shall permit 
the removal of the cover with one hand. Hinged covers are acceptable provided that they can be 
opened with one hand. 
 
5.4.1 When provided and in place, a cover shall: 
 

- Overlap and continuously contact the container opening; and 
- Prevent water from entering the container opening; and 
- Minimize exterior gnawing edges (This requirement shall not apply to raised reinforcing 

members, decorative features, or lifting devices that do not have a common wall with the 
cover); and 

- Be designed and manufactured so that it provides for secure attachment to the container. 
 
Rationale: Limiting a use application such as if a thermoplastic refuse container is used indoors or 
outdoors is outside the scope of certifying criteria. Requiring a cover, whether for indoor or outdoor use, 
may constitute an unreasonable condition when a thermoplastic refuse container is placed inside an 
enclosure manufactured by a third party. However, when offered, a cover must meet minimum 
requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supplementary Materials (photographs, diagrams, reports, etc.):  
If not provided electronically, the submitter will be responsible to have sufficient copies to distribute to 
committee members.  
 
 
I hereby grant NSF International the non-exclusive, royalty free rights, including non-exclusive, 
royalty free rights in copyright; in this item and I understand that I acquire no rights in any 
publication of NSF International in which this item in this or another similar or analogous form is 
used. 
 
 
Signature*:   Michael Perez          
Company: Baring Industries          
Telephone Number:  (954) 327-6752 E-mail: michael.perez@baring.com____ 
Submission Date:  05-03-2019     
 
Please submit to: Al Rose, arose@nsf.org 
 
*Type written name will suffice as signature 



 
 
 

TAB F2 
 
FE-2019-06 - Slotted Fasteners 

in Marine Equipment  
 

Luis Rodriguez 



 
   

Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

NSF Standard(s) Impacted: NSF/ANSI 2 
 
Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 
 
A prohibition for slotted fasteners in food zones has been on the CDC Vessel Sanitation Program (VSP) 
Operations Manual since 2011, although their presence was cited as a violation before 2011 as a difficult 
to clean feature. The VSP was established in 1975 as a cooperative activity with the cruise ship industry. 
This program assists the cruise ship industry in fulfilling its responsibility for developing and implementing 
comprehensive performance-based systems to protect the health of the traveling public. The VSP 
conducts public health inspections on cruise ships and assist cruise lines during outbreak investigations.  
 
Since October 1, 2011 up to September 30, 2018, VSP inspectors cited 696 times the presence of slotted 
fasteners in food zones as violations; 148 out of those 696 carried point deductions (21% of the times).  
 
VSP has guidelines establishing certain standards for equipment and materials installed on cruise 
vessels, but VSP does not test, certify, or otherwise endorse or approve any equipment or materials used 
by the cruise industry. Instead, VSP recognizes certification from independent testing laboratories such 
as NSF International, Underwriter’s Laboratories (UL), the American National Standards Institute (ANSI), 
and other recognized independent international testing institutions.  
 
Many times, a food equipment can be NSF approved but still will not be fully compliant with Vessel 
Sanitation Program requirements, even when NSF certifications are recognized by VSP. Including a 
prohibition of slotted fasteners in food zones for marine food equipment will bridge the gap between NSF 
standard 2 and CDC/VSP requirements. This change will help tremendously the passenger vessel and 
cruise industry along with food equipment manufacturers and suppliers. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Clearly state what action is needed: e.g., recommended changes to the standard(s) including the current 
text of the relevant section(s) indicating deletions by use of strike-out and additions by highlighting or 
underlining; e.g., reference of the issue to a Task Group for detailed consideration; etc.   
 

1. NSF/ANSI 2 – Food Equipment has a section 8 “Supplemental requirements for marine food 
equipment”. It seems like manufacturers might not be using this section and instead are trying 
to comply with all previous sections of the standard. If not used, perhaps is useful to delete. 

 
2. Modify section 5.5.2 as follows:  

 
5.5.2 Fasteners shall be easily cleanable. Fasteners meeting this requirement include, but are 
not limited to, slot-head and Phillips-head screws, hex head fasteners, and flush-break pop 
rivets. Hex key screws and non-flush break pop rivets may be used in a splash zone or a nonfood 
zone provided that the heads are capped or filled. In marine equipment, do not use slotted 
fasteners on food zones and splash zones.  

 
 
 

arose
Sticky Note
FE-2019-06



 
   

Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

Supplementary Materials (photographs, diagrams, reports, etc.):  
If not provided electronically, the submitter will be responsible to have sufficient copies to distribute to 
committee members.  
 
 
I hereby grant NSF International the non-exclusive, royalty free rights, including non-exclusive, 
royalty free rights in copyright; in this item and I understand that I acquire no rights in any 
publication of NSF International in which this item in this or another similar or analogous form is 
used. 
 
 
Signature*:               
Company: Centers for Disease and Prevention (CDC) / Vessel Sanitation Program 
(VSP) 
Telephone Number: 954-356-6650 E-mail: ved8@cdc.gov 
Submission Date: 6/2/2019 
 
Please submit to:  Al Rose, arose@nsf.org 
 
 
*Type written name will suffice as signature 



 
 
 

TAB F3 
 
Issue Paper FE-2019-08 - NOTE in 

5.1.4  
 

Riccardo Bergamini 



Item No. FE-2019-08 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

NSF Standard(s) Impacted: NSF/ANSI 18 – 2016  Manual Food and Beverage Dispensing Equipment. 

Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 

1) ANTE-FACT
Ferrero has developed an electric dispenser for NUTELLA®, for which is required the sanitation certification
against the standard NSF18 for USA market.
The standard requires a water-based cleaning of the machine, but given the nature of NUTELLA®, such
procedure would pose greater risks than benefits.

2) PRODUCT DESCRIPTION
Nutella is suspension of solid particles in a continuous liquid medium (oil) both strictly anhydrous. 
Nutella is a low-aw product (0.3), low humidity content (< 1,2%) therefore food safety (including 
microbiological issues) is not affected, if the product, during its whole shelf life, is strictly kept away from 
water and humidity, and from any other foreign contamination source. 

Ingredients: sugar, vegetable fat (palm), hazelnuts 13%, skimmed milk powder 8,7%, fat reduced cocoa 
7,4%, emulsifier: lecithin (soy and/or sunflower), vanillin. 

Storage Conditions: the product unopened should be stored in a dry place at a normal ambient 
temperature (e.g. from 16 to 26°C). 

Organoleptic Characteristic 
Appearance: pasty 
Color: brown 
Consistency: creamy 
Odor: nut, cocoa 
Taste: sweet, nut, cocoa 

3) EFFECTS OF WATER/HUMIDITY IN CONTACT WITH NUTELLA
Water when in contact with Nutella can cause 2 major issues: 

1) ORGANOLEPTIC  Texture modifications – granules formation and overall fluidity/spreadability
loss

2) MICROBIOLOGICAL  Creation of favorable environmental conditions that may increase the risk
of microbial growth, depending then on temperature/time exposure



Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

1) ORGANOLEPTIC  Texture modifications

Below an example of the effect of some water drop fallen down in Nutella. 
The cream becomes very viscous and start to “coagulate”: some lumps start to appear and the texture is 
not fluid and not comparable to the standard texture requirements of Nutella. 
The modification of the texture can also interfere with the rheology of the use of the product inside pipes, 
ducts or pumping systems. 

+ s o m e  d r o p  o f  w a t e r

S u g a r  g r a n u l e s  f o r m a t i o n



Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

2) MICROBIOLOGICAL  creation of environment that allows microbial growth

Definition: WATER ACTIVITY 
“Water activity” (aw) is a concept of food processing and preservation technologies that indicates the 
relationship between the vapor pressure of water in a certain material and the vapor pressure of pure water. 
From a purely descriptive point of view, it is an index relating to the quantity of water that, in a given 
product, is free from particular bonds with other components, therefore, of the quantity of water 
(expressed in a dimensionless value between 0 and 1) available for chemical and biological reactions. 

Microbial proliferation 
Microbial proliferation is one of the most important and dangerous causes of alteration (in the sense of 
unwanted spontaneous transformation) of food. 
The micro-organisms to multiply, in addition to suitable temperature conditions, acidity, presence (or 
absence) of oxygen, availability of nutrients, etc., absolutely require water. 
The presence of water, not so much in terms of quantity, as in terms of availability of water itself, can 
therefore determine the deterioration of a food product. 
Since the aforementioned freedom translates into availability for biological and enzymatic processes that 
require water, the parameter water activity, although useful in a series of other various problems, enters 
mainly at stake when it comes to stability and safety of the foods. 

Nutella is an anhydrous product, with a natural aw of 0.30, and any microbial growth is inhibited. 

It is, therefore, a food not to be included among the “potentially hazardous foods”, as described in NSF/ANSI 
170 - GLOSSARY OF FOOD EQUIPMENT TERMINOLOGY - Edition 2015 – point 3.148: 
“3) Potentially hazardous food does not include: 
…. 
– a food having water activity (aw) value of 0.85 or less;”.

Addition of water in the system (even if aimed to “clean”) could cause the increase of moisture and 
aw, hence increasing the possibility of a microbial growth. 



 
   

Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

4) FERRERO EXPERIENCE 
 
Since the creation of Nutella, Ferrero has always had the aim of producing a safe product adopting the best 
technology and practices available. 
In all of Ferrero plants producing Nutella, all the pipelines are securely closed and cleaned (e.g. after a 
stop, even of a few days) through “FLUSHING”: fresh product is pumped in the system, removing residues 
of the old one. 
The first output is destroyed (only for organoleptic reason), and only when all the fresh product has filled 
the system, the production (e.g. jars filling) can start. 
 
This practice has been effective during over 50 years of Nutella production. 
 
Similarly, the dispenser cleaning can be obtained by pumping fresh Nutella through the system, removing 
leftovers from previous use, again, only with the aim to remove product that from a sensorial point of view 
is not “excellent” anymore, so to protect the trademark “sensorial excellence” of our product. 
 
The dispenser is designed as a closed and sealed system, with no dead-spaces in order to avoid any 
accumulation exactly like our industrial lines. (as required by NSF 18 - § 5.2) 
See figures 1-2-3 
 
 

 
Figure 1 - dispenser design – INLET 



 
   

Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

 
Figure 2 - dispenser design - PUMP/ENGINE 

 
 
 

 
Figure 3 - dispenser design - OUTLET 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
   

Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

5) CONCLUSIONS 
 
For all the reasons mentioned above, it is strongly recommended to avoid the use of water in the 
cleaning/hygiene of Nutella processing equipment so that the environment can be kept as free as possible 
from moisture. 
The use of water during cleaning can make it possible to reach levels of aw that promote the growth of 
micro-organisms. 
The only “cleaning” of the internal parts of the dispenser (food zone) may require is just a flush with fresh 
product. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Clearly state what action is needed: e.g., recommended changes to the standard(s) including the current 
text of the relevant section(s) indicating deletions by use of strike-out and additions by highlighting or 
underlining; e.g., reference of the issue to a Task Group for detailed consideration; etc.   
 
 
Ferrero requests that Nutella spread is associated to the already existing exception mentioned in the 
standard NSF18 Chapter 5.1.4 
 
 
Recommended changes to the standard NSF18 Chapter 5.1.4 
 
NOTE – In-place cleaning procedures are not required and must not be carried out in order to protect the 
product under food safety aspects: 

- for oil distribution systems that only circulate fresh, edible oil throughout the fixed system 
- for spreadable creams cacao and hazelnut based (suspension of solid particles in a continuous 

liquid medium (oil) both strictly anhydrous) with such characteristics [aw <0.5, sugar > 40% and 
fat> 20%] that do not support the growths of any microorganism, circulating in fixed systems, in 
which introduction of water or water-based substances is not recommended 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

EXTRACT FROM NUTELLA DISPENSER USER MANUAL section 7 “CLEANING” (draft) 
 
NUTELLA DISPENSER FLUSHING PROCEDURE 
 
Given that the whole system from INLET to OUTLET hold ca. 30g of Nutella the suggested cleaning 
procedure is the following: 
 
CLEANING of internal part of dispenser [procedure to be followed after every stop longer than 1 
week of the machine]: 

1. connect the power, wait 5-10 minutes in order to allow the system to reach the ideal temperature 
2. flush 2 pumping of the preset “15g” dosing button (total of 30 g of Nutella to be disposed of) 
3. start use of the machine 

 
Reference:  
ICMSF – MICRO-ORGANISMS IN FOODS 6 – Microbial ecology of food commodities 
 



 
   

Item No._______ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

 
Supplementary Materials (photographs, diagrams, reports, etc.):  
If not provided electronically, the submitter will be responsible to have sufficient copies to distribute to 
committee members.  
 
 
I hereby grant NSF International the non-exclusive, royalty free rights, including non-exclusive, 
royalty free rights in copyright; in this item and I understand that I acquire no rights in any 
publication of NSF International in which this item in this or another similar or analogous form is 
used. 
 
 
Signature*:   SALVATORE RANCHETTI - (Head of Ferrero Group Quality) 
(prepared by Riccardo Bergamini – Foodservice Quality Manager)  
 
Company:  FERRERO 
Telephone Number: +39 344 2951964 E-mail: riccardo.bergamini@ferrero.com  
 
Submission Date:   July 19th 2019   
 
Please submit to:  Al Rose, arose@nsf.org 
 
 
*Type written name will suffice as signature 

mailto:riccardo.bergamini@ferrero.com






EXTRACT FROM: “ICMSF – MICRO-ORGANISMS IN FOODS 6 – Microbial ecology of 
food commodities” 

PAGES: 383-385-386 

 

….

…… 

 

…. 

 

…. 

 

….. 

 









 
 
 

TAB F4 
 

Issue Paper FE-2019-09 - 
Definition for Potentially Hazard 

Foods  
 

Danielle Melaragno 



 
   

Item No. FE-2019-09 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

NSF Standard(s) Impacted:  NSF/ANSI 170:  Glossary of Food Equipment Terminology  
 
Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 
 
Nomenclature and guidelines regarding potentially hazardous food have been updated within the FDA 
Food Code based on outbreaks that have occurred and subsequent research. It is recommended that 
NSF/ANSI 170 be revised to correspond with updates regarding what is now known as 
Time/Temperature Control for Safety Food.  
 
Recommendation: 
Clearly state what action is needed: e.g., recommended changes to the standard(s) including the current 
text of the relevant section(s) indicating deletions by use of strike-out and additions by highlighting or 
underlining; e.g., reference of the issue to a Task Group for detailed consideration; etc.   
 
Revise clause 3.154 and other related definitions (such as 3.138 for non-potentially hazardous food) to 
correspond current U.S. FDA Food Code (2017).  
 
3.154 potentially hazardous food Time/temperature control for safety (TCS) food:  
 
1) A food that is natural or synthetic and requires temperature control because it is in a form capable of 
supporting the following: rapid and progressive growth of infectious or toxigenic microorganisms; growth 
and toxin production of Clostridium botulinum; or, in raw shell eggs, the growth of Salmonella enteritidis. 
requires time/temperature control for safety (TCS) to limit pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin 
formation. 
 
2) Potentially hazardous food Time/temperature control for safety (TCS) food includes: 
- animal food (a food of animal origin) that is raw or heat-treated;  
- food of plant origin that is heat-treated or consists of raw seed sprouts;  
- cut melons;  
- cut leafy greens;  
- cut tomatoes or mixtures of cut tomatoes that are not modified in a way so that they are unable to 
support pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin formation; and  
- garlic and oil mixtures that are not acidified or otherwise modified at a food processing plant in a way 
that results in mixtures that do not support growth as specified above. pathogenic microorganism growth 
or toxin formation  
 
(3) Potentially hazardous food Time/temperature control for safety (TCS) food does not include:  
— an air-cooled hard-boiled egg with shell intact, or a shell egg that is not hard-boiled but has been 
treated to destroy all viable salmonellae; 
— a food having water activity (aw) value of 0.85 or less; 
— a food with a pH of 4.6 or less when measured at 75 °F (24 °C); 
— a food, in an unopened hermetically sealed container, that is commercially processed to achieve 
and maintain commercial sterility under conditions of nonrefrigerated storage and distribution; 
— a food for which laboratory evidence demonstrates that rapid and progressive growth of infectious 
or toxigenic microorganisms or the growth of S. enterititdis in eggs or C. botulinum cannot occur, as 
defined previously in this section, and that may contain a preservative, other barrier to the growth of 
microorganisms, or a combination of barriers that inhibit the growth of microorganisms; or 



 
   

Item No. FE-2019-09 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

— a food that does not support the growth of microorganisms as specified under part a) of this 
definition even though the food may contain an infectious or toxigenic microorganism or chemical or 
physical contaminant at a sufficient level to cause illness. 
 
 
Supplementary Materials (photographs, diagrams, reports, etc.):  
If not provided electronically, the submitter will be responsible to have sufficient copies to distribute to 
committee members. 
 
Definition of page 22 of U.S. FDA Food Code 2017 (page 52 of PDF):  

FDAFoodCode2017.
pdf

 
 
 
I hereby grant NSF International the non-exclusive, royalty free rights, including non-exclusive, 
royalty free rights in copyright; in this item and I understand that I acquire no rights in any 
publication of NSF International in which this item in this or another similar or analogous form is 
used. 
 
 
Signature*:   Danielle Melaragno         
Company: Intertek            
Telephone Number: 614-477-0872 E-mail:   danielle.melaragno@intertek.com   
Submission Date:  07/26/19     
 
Please submit to:  Al Rose, arose@nsf.org 
 
 
*Type written name will suffice as signature 

mailto:danielle.melaragno@intertek.com


 
 
 

TAB F5 
 

Issue Paper FE-2019-10 - 
Definition for Sheets. 

 
Danielle Melaragno 



 
   

Item No. FE-2019-10 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

NSF Standard(s) Impacted:  NSF/ANSI 170:  Glossary of Food Equipment Terminology  
 
Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 
 
The Design and construction section of most NSF/ANSI food equipment standards include the following 
requirement: Joints formed by overlapping sheets of material shall not create upwardly facing horizontal 
ledges.  
 
Note, the term “permanent” is not included in this requirement, therefore non-permanent joints are 
included within this restriction.  
 
While standards such as A480/A480M - 18a, Standard Specification for General Requirements for Flat-
Rolled Stainless and Heat-Resisting Steel Plate, Sheet, and Strip1, include a definition for the term 
“sheet,” NSF/ANSI 170 does not. This can result in confusion regarding the compliance of various 
construction types. Examples of different construction types have been provided below for comparison.  
 

Example 1 Example 2 Example 3 

 
  

 

 
 
Recommendation: 
Clearly state what action is needed: e.g., recommended changes to the standard(s) including the current 
text of the relevant section(s) indicating deletions by use of strike-out and additions by highlighting or 
underlining; e.g., reference of the issue to a Task Group for detailed consideration; etc.   
 
It is recommended that a definition for the term “sheet” be added to the NSF/ANSI 170 standard.  
 
Example definition from A480/A480M - 18a: 
sheet, n—material under 3/16 in. [5.00 mm] in thickness and 24 in. [600 mm] and over in width. 

                                                      
1 ASTM A480 / A480M-18a, Standard Specification for General Requirements for Flat-Rolled Stainless 
and Heat-Resisting Steel Plate, Sheet, and Strip, ASTM International, West Conshohocken, PA, 2018, 
www.astm.org 



 
   

Item No. FE-2019-10 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

 
Supplementary Materials (photographs, diagrams, reports, etc.):  
If not provided electronically, the submitter will be responsible to have sufficient copies to distribute to 
committee members. 
 
 
I hereby grant NSF International the non-exclusive, royalty free rights, including non-exclusive, 
royalty free rights in copyright; in this item and I understand that I acquire no rights in any 
publication of NSF International in which this item in this or another similar or analogous form is 
used. 
 
 
Signature*:   Danielle Melaragno         
Company: Intertek            
Telephone Number: 614-477-0872 E-mail:   danielle.melaragno@intertek.com   
Submission Date:  07/26/19     
 
Please submit to:  Al Rose, arose@nsf.org 
 
 
*Type written name will suffice as signature 

mailto:danielle.melaragno@intertek.com


 
 
 

TAB F6 
 

FE-2019-11 - Casters 
 

Joel Hall 



NSF Standard(s) Impacted: 

Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 

Casters- Casters Horn to Wheel Distance: 2354987-6 

he GD series leveling caster is a unique, dual-function product. To date, there are no identical 

NSF-approved caster products currently utilized in the kitchen industry. As a manufacturer of 

casters and wheels, we have had a leading kitchen equipment manufacturer request 

NSF-approved versions of our product. We regard innovation in the marketplace as a benefit to 

our customers, our business, and our product line growth. 

We recognize that current NSF standards as applied to casters are appropriate, considering that 

there is not a bright line to designate "static" and "active" casters. Our request for ammendments 

concerns the dual function of our innovative product, which has the capabilities of a caster, but 

its primary function is that of a stationary leveling foot. 

The GD series leveling caster is marketed as "Innovative multifunctional products" for use in 

applications for "moving a piece of equipment into a desired location and setting the unit into ... 

position" (Pg. 6, G-Dok General Catalogue). 

The GD series leveling caster provides a stable, anti-vibration platform for static operation with 

the ability to move easily for cleaning. The GD series allows for heavy food-industry equipment 

to be considered legally mobile. This may be of particular interest to restaurant owners 

concerned with financial loss due to laws regarding "fixtures" to be left behind at the termination 

of a lease 

(https://www.stimmel-law.com/en/articles/fixtures-commercial-leases-what-you-have-leave-behi 

nd-end-lease). 

The relevant standard in question relates to easy cleaning: 

§5.232.5

If the closest surface of the horn leg parallel to the wheel side is 1.0 in wide (25 mm) or

less, a minimum clearance of 1 /8 in (0.13 in, 3.2 mm) shall be provided between the

sides of the wheels and the horn legs. If the surface is greater than 1.0 in (25 mm) wide,

a minimum Y-i in (0.25 in, 6.4 mm) clearance shall be provided.

Item No. __ _ 
(For NSF International internal use) 

03/2013 

Standard 2

FE-2019-11



FE-2019-11



NSF Standard(s) Impacted: 

Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 

Casters- Wheel tread to horn distance: 2354987-7 

The GD series leveling caster is a unique, dual-function product. To date, there are no identical 

NSF-approved caster products currently utilized in the kitchen industry. As a manufacturer of 

casters and wheels, we have had a leading kitchen equipment manufacturer request 

NSF-approved versions of our product. We regard innovation in the marketplace as a benefit to 

our customers, our business, and our product line growth. We regard innovation in the 

marketplace as a benefit to our customers, our business, and our product line growth. 

We recognize that current NSF standards as applied to casters are appropriate, considering that 

there is not a bright line to designate "static" and "active" casters. Our request for amendments 

concerns the dual function of our innovative product, which has the capabilities of a caster, but 

its primary function is that of a stationary leveling foot. 

The relevant standard in question relates to easy cleaning: 

§ 5.23.6 A minimum clearance of 1/4 in (0.25 in, 6.4 mm) shall be provided between the

wheel tread and horn assembly. For swivel casters, the minimum clearance shall be 1/8

in (0.13 in, 3.2 mm). Hooded horns with more than a 90° arc of the wheel covered shall

not be used.

Recommendation: 
Clearly state what action is needed: e.g., recommended changes to the standard(s) including the 
currenttext of the relevant section(s) indicating deletions by use of stfilte a1:1t and additions by highlighting 
or underlining: e.g., reference of the issue to a Task Group for detailed consideration; etc. 

Casters- Wheel tread to horn distance: 2354987-7 

The GD caster's form is integral to its function. A hood of greater than 90 degrees is structurally 

necessary for the GD's function as intended. Exceptions to § 5.23.5 

and § 5.23.6. have been granted for caster brakes and locking mechanisms in 5.23.8. We 

recommend the following amendment: 

Item No. 
---

(For NSF International internal use) 
03/2013 

Standard 2 - Food Equipment

FE-2019-11



FE-2019-11



 
 
 

TAB F7 
 

Information Paper 
Surface Cleanability 

 
Dipak Negandhi 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

News of events or activities related to the field of interest of the Joint Committee 
 
Subject: 
NSF/ ANSI 51 on Food Equipment materials, Section 7 Surface Cleanability Test 
 
 
 
 
 
Brief statement of information provided:  
The TG on Standard 51 has approved deletion of this test due to accuracy and safety 
concerns. 
The original issue paper on this subject also requested an evaluation if an alternate is 
needed  
This information paper is being submitted to evaluate alternate methods to determine 
‘cleanability’ of a surface  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name:   Dipak J. Negandhi, P.E., CFSP      
Company: A.O.Smith, Commercial Engineering       
Telephone Number:  843-335-8281 Ext. 423  E-mail: djnegandhi@hotwater.com  
 
Please submit to:  Al Rose, arose@nsf.org 
 



Surface Characteristics

NSF Joint Committee
Task Group on Std 51 – Materials

Dipak J. Negandhi, P.E., CFSP, Fellow ASTM International                                                

A.O. Smith, Commercial Engineering

McBee, SC



Surface Cleanability

●TG has recommended removal of 
cleanability test

●General TG consensus was to replace it 
with a new test or other measurable 
criteria



Surface Finish

●Standard 51 Requirements:

● Abrasion Resistance Test
● Impact Resistance Test
● Adhesion Resistance Test (for coatings)



Surface Finish (SF)
●SF is a qualitative parameter
●SF can be quantified and measured as 
Surface Roughness (SR)
●SR is measured as Ra value of surface
using a stylus and Ra meter
●For accurate measurement, wavelength
cutoff filters for roughness and waviness
are specified



Surface Roughness
●#2B SS - Ra less than 20 micro-inch
●#3 SS - Ra less than 40 micro-inch
●#4 SS - Ra less than 25 micro-inch
● These finishes are acceptable for food contact 

as cleanable surfaces (empirically)
● Surfaces above threshold roughness 

(embossed) may not be suitable for food 
contact



Hardness

●Hardness can be measured with instruments 
intended for the surface.
●Measured as -

● Rockwell (for metals and solid surface materials) in 
units of HRC / HRB or HRF

● Or Shore (for softer materials like plastics and 
elastomers) in units of Shore OO,  Shore A or 
Shore D



Hardness
●Harder materials are easier to clean
●Rubbers and plastics with higher density 
and non-porous surface are also easy to 
clean
●Surfaces below a threshold hardness 
level may require additional tests for 
porosity or cleanability



Porosity
●Porosity is typically expressed as a percent of solid 
volume
●Porosity = (Volume of Voids / Total Volume) x 100%
●ASTM test procedures for determining porosity of 
ceramics and other soft materials
●e.g. ASTM C373-18 - Standard Test Methods for 
Determination of Water Absorption and Associated 
Properties by Vacuum Method for Pressed Ceramic Tiles 
and Glass Tiles and Boil Method for Extruded Ceramic 
Tiles and Non-tile Fired Ceramic Whiteware Products



Summary

● A test for cleanability combined with threshold 
limits of physical parameters can be an effective 
alternate to replace the cleanability test

● Additional research to establish thresholds
● Evaluate existing test methods to use

– e.g. NSF/ ANSI 3 (Warewashing Equipment) describes 
a soil removal test  



Item No. FE-2019-04 
(For NSF International internal use) 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

NSF Standard(s) Impacted: NSF/ANSI 51 

Background: 
Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified 
relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be 
considered by the Committee. Reference as appropriate any specific section(s) of the standard(s) that are 
related to the issue. 

The surface cleanability test is not a direct requirement of any NSF Standard. Currently, it is only referenced 
in the event of a texture being considered uncleanable. However, Section 5.1 of NSF/ANSI 51 requires 
materials to be smooth and easily cleanable. The defined terms of “smooth” and “easily cleanable” are used 
to evaluate material surfaces rather than the surface cleanability test.  Therefore, the test is not actually 
used.  

The surface cleanability test is no longer capable of being performed by any existing laboratory. The NSF 
laboratory was the only laboratory that has ever run this test and no longer has the ability.  

There is a long history of challenges with the test with several failed attempts to revise/replace it. 

Recommendation: 
Clearly state what action is needed: e.g., recommended changes to the standard(s) including the current 
text of the relevant section(s) indicating deletions by use of strike-out and additions by highlighting or 
underlining; e.g., reference of the issue to a Task Group for detailed consideration; etc.   

1. Remove the current unusable surface cleanability test from NSF/ANSI 51.

2. Obtain consensus on whether a workable requirement is necessary to be developed and added
after the unusable test is removed.

5  General materials requirements 

5.1 Materials shall be smooth and easily cleanable. 

If a material is textured so that it may hinder the removal of soil during cleaning, the material shall meet the 
surface cleanability requirements in 7. 

7  Surface cleanability 

7.1 Test method 

When required by this Standard, the surface cleanability of a textured material shall be determined by 
quantification of the amount of applied soil that remains on a material sample after cleaning. Four material 
test plaques (5.0 x 5.0 in [130 x 130 mm]) shall be washed with a non-ionic, low foaming, powdered 
mechanical washer detergent and water at 162 ± 2 °F (72 ± 1 °C) and shall be air dried. A standardized 
synthetic lard comprised of glycerol trioleate (62.5%), glycerol tristearate (37.5%), and trace amounts of 
14C-labeled glycerol trioleate (0.845 μCi per gram of synthetic lard) and 14C-labeled stearic acid (0.514 
μCi per gram of synthetic lard), shall be applied to the test plaques. The lard shall be heated to a liquid 
state, and 200 μL shall be applied to each of four equal quadrants on each test plaque. The lard shall be 
spread in a uniform layer onto the quadrants while under an infrared heat source to maintain the lard in a 
liquid state. The mass of soil on each quadrant shall be quantified using a beta radiation counting system; 



Item No. FE-2019-04
(For NSF International internal use) 

Joint Committee Issue Paper 

each quadrant shall have 20 ± 5 mg applied to its surface. The soiled test plaques shall be washed in a 
single-temperature, total-dump dishwashing machine having the following characteristics: 
– no overhead spray;
– no detergent added;
– wash and rinse water temperature: 162 ± 2 °F (72 ± 1 °C);
– wash cycle time: 120 ± 2 s;
– total wash cycle volume: 2.3 ± 0.2 gal (8.7 ± 0.8 L);
– dwell cycle time: 30 ± 2 s;
– rinse cycle time: 30 ± 2 s; and
– total rinse cycle volume: 2.3 ± 0.2 gal (8.7 ± 0.8 L).
After washing, the residual soil on each of the sixteen quadrants shall be quantified using a beta radiation
counting system. The average residual soil value shall be compared to the control value for the zone in
which the material is located.

7.2 Acceptance criteria 

The average residual soil on the quadrants shall not exceed the predetermined control value for the zone 
in which the material is located. 

Zone Control value Examples 
food zone 30 μg stainless steel - No. 3 (100 grit) finish 
heated food zone 1750 μg cast iron 
ice bin materials 650 μg rotationally molded polyethylene 
splash and nonfood zone 220 μg hot rolled steel 

Supplementary Materials (photographs, diagrams, reports, etc.):  
If not provided electronically, the submitter will be responsible to have sufficient copies to distribute to 
committee members.  

I hereby grant NSF International the non-exclusive, royalty free rights, including non-exclusive, 
royalty free rights in copyright; in this item and I understand that I acquire no rights in any 
publication of NSF International in which this item in this or another similar or analogous form is 
used. 

Signature*:    Kelli M. Fall 
Company: NSF International 
Telephone Number:  734-649-5957 E-mail:kfall@nsf.org

Please submit to the Secretariat 
of the Joint Committee on:  

Email completed form to the Standards Department: standards@nsf.org. 

*Type written name will suffice as signature

mailto:standards@nsf.org




































 
 
 

TAB F8 
 

Information Paper 
Plastic Cutting Boards 

 
Jeff Veden 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

News of events or activities related to the field of interest of the Joint Committee 
 
Subject: 
 
As the President of Cutting Board Resurfacing, LLC, I work with every brands of NSF approved, plastic 
cutting boards found in commercial kitchens.  There are 2 primary types of plastic cutting boards being 
used: 1) Extruded HDPE and 2) Injection Molded “Co-Polymer.” The extruded HDPE cutting boards are 
much more durable than the injection molded boards.  Over the last several years, I have become 
increasingly concerned with the enormous amount of plastic and rubber that we find missing on the 
injection molded, NSF approved, cutting boards. The NSF/ANSI Standards and the products that earn the 
NSF (and FDA) certification are supposed to meet Federal Food Code regulations. This is especially true 
for “PRIORITY ITEMS” such as primary “FOODCONTACT SURFACES.” The reason that I have 
submitted this Information Paper today is to raise attention and provide material evidence that will prove 
that all types of injection molded cutting boards are fundamentally unsafe and pose a grave and 
unnecessary risk to public health and safety. As such, they should be immediately recalled and no longer 
allowed to be sold for use as cutting boards.  
 
Brief statement of information provided:  
 
To the best of my ability, I have attempted reference the most relevant NSF standards. All these 
standards should be familiar to this audience.  However, I have also included the textual references for 
most of the relevant Federal Food Code -2017 regulations. I hope this adds clarity and a reference point 
for comparative analysis. I have also brought with me some samples and provided photographs of the 
problems we see everyday in the kitchens of Arizona and Southern California.  
 
Let me begin with Section 4 of the Federal Food Code which states: 
Materials that are used in the construction of UTENSILS and FOODCONTACT SURFACES of 
EQUIPMENT may not allow the migration of deleterious substances or impart colors, odors, or tastes to 
FOOD and under normal use conditions shall be: 

P    

N0TE Inserted for emphasis: (A “
P
” or “

Pf
” designation after a paragraph or subparagraph indicates that the provision within that 

section is a PRIORITY ITEM or PRIORITY FOUNDATION ITEM. Any unmarked provisions within a section are CORE ITEMS.) 

(A) Safe; 
P 

 

(B) Durable, CORROSION-RESISTANT, and nonabsorbent;  

(C) Sufficient in weight and thickness to withstand repeated WAREWASHING;  

(D) Finished to have a SMOOTH, EASILY CLEANABLE surface; and  

(E) Resistant to pitting, chipping, crazing, scratching, scoring, distortion, and decomposition. (Federal 
Food Code – 2017, 4-101.11, pp. 113-114) 
 
If we analyze this regulation and the closest corresponding standard, NSF 51-2017, Sec. 4.1.1, it seems 
to defy logic that a soft, artificially colored, petroleum-based, injection molded, co-polymer, thermoplastic 
cutting board was able to successfully pass this test.  But it didn’t just pass, it continued to navigate the 
gauntlet of other regulations and standards and was finally awarded both NSF and FDA certifications. 
Because this product is less expensive to make and has a shorter functional lifespan (by purposeful 
design) it has pushed extruded plastic hand boards completely out of the primary distribution chains, 
leaving commercial kitchens with no other choice. The few companies that mass produce these injection 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

molded boards proudly proclaim that these injection molded boards are NSF and FDA approved and they 
are laughing all the way to the bank while public health and safety has been put in jeopardy.   

As will be demonstrated in the pictures presented and the actual samples that I have brought with me, it 
should be clear that microscopic to large pieces of injection molded cutting boards are constantly and 
consistently “becoming a component of our food.” Although, it has been argued that the co-polymers 
used in the injection molded cutting boards are “food safe” is does not mean that they should be 
considered FOOD!  In this study, titled: Most Plastic Products Release Estrogenic Chemicals: A 
Potential Health Problem That Can Be Solved  published in Environ Health Perspect. 2011 Jul 1; 119(7): 
989–996.Published online 2011 Mar 2. doi: 10.1289/ehp.1003220.  They conclude that, “Many scientists 
believe that it is not appropriate to bet our health and that of future generations on an assumption that 
known cellular effects of chemicals having EA released from most plastics will have no severe adverse 
health effects (Gray 2008; Talsness et al. 2009; Thompson et al. 2009).” This is just one of many peer 
reviewed, scientific studies that basically confirm the obvious, that it is a bad and potentially hazardous 
idea for humans and virtually every other living organism to willingly, accidentally or incidentally ingest 
any amount of plastic. 

Recently, microplastic waste has been making headlines. It is being found in every ecosystem that has 
been tested (ie. Deepest parts of the oceans, rivers, streams, on the highest mountains, in the 
atmosphere and everywhere in between). This is unacceptable because it is avoidable. To make matters 
even worse, it was recently estimated that every person on the planet is inadvertently consuming, on 
average, about 5 grams of plastic each week or 9.2 oz per year. Please follow this link for some 
staggering figures on plastic production, waste and ingestion.  Although this article has not been peer 
reviewed, most of the data referenced has been.  
https://wwwwwfse.cdn.triggerfish.cloud/uploads/2019/06/dalberg-advocacy-analysis_for-web.pdf . Please 
let that soak in. It is staggering. 
 
Consider this, the average 18”x24”x.5” hand board weighs 7.5 lbs. This is equal to 611 grocery bags or 
8,400 single use plastic straws!  Given recent efforts to ban plastic bags and straws, it stands to reason 
that if these facts were common knowledge, the public would demand that single use, injection molded 
cutting boards to be banned from being used and/or manufactured. This noble effort may result in 
hundreds of millions of pounds worth of straws and bags being eliminated from the landfills and the 
environment. But, this figure pales in comparison to how many billions of tons of plastic cutting board 
waste that are being unnecessarily dumped in our landfills each year with little to no public awareness. All 
of the plastic waste in the world combined is quickly becoming a humanitarian and environmental crisis. 
 
So, it stands to reason that if pieces of the soft, injection molded cutting boards are likely entering the 
food chain and is generally accepted that it is unhealthy to ingest any amount of plastic, lets look at part 
(B). After observing injection molded cutting boards in real world use, it is evident that they do not meet 
the definition of “durable, CORROSION-RESISTANT and nonabsorbent.” The material is too soft and 
quickly develop deep cut marks with regularly intended use.. We always find missing micro-plastic 
material where the primary cutting task is performed.  But we also find small slivers to chunks of plastic 
peeling off these boards.  
 
A huge additional concern regarding durability has emerged within the past few years. As a “safety” 
improvement (or marketing gimmick) companies have added rubber, “non-slip” pads to the corners on 
both sides of these cutting boards.  During normal use and ware-washing, pieces of these rubber feet 
start falling off. They get cut off during prep work especially, when chefs slide cut items off using their 
knives.  Additionally, the feet get caught on storage racks and in ware washing systems.  It is also 
possible that cleaning/sanitizing chemicals along with wash temperatures could be causing material 
degradation and/or the bonds to weaken, resulting in the failures. (NSF/ANSI 51 – 4.1.1, 12) 

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3222987/
https://dx.doi.org/10.1289%2Fehp.1003220
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3222987/#r6
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3222987/#r27
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3222987/#r28
https://wwwwwfse.cdn.triggerfish.cloud/uploads/2019/06/dalberg-advocacy-analysis_for-web.pdf


 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 
Regular, daily wear quickly creates a surface that is no longer “SMOOTH” or “EASILY CLEANABLE”. This 
injection molded material is easily scratched and scored by repeated knife cuts. Pits and chips regularly 
develop and can be easily observed with the naked eye. Microscopic investigation reveals a porous, 
mesh of decomposing plastic. The sanitizer is unable to penetrate the few micron wide cracks and 
effectively kill the bacteria, viruses, molds and other micro-organisms that thrive at these levels. The 
surface of the board may indicate a 5 log kill, but just under the surface, everything is alive and 
multiplying. With the first pass of the knife, recontamination of the surface and possible cross-
contamination of the food begins again. The food code has numerous references supporting this, such 
as: 
“Cutting surfaces such as cutting boards and blocks that become scratched and scored may be difficult to 
clean and sanitize. As a result, pathogenic microorganisms transmissible through food may build up or 
accumulate. These microorganisms may be transferred to foods that are prepared on such surfaces.”  
(Federal Food Code – 2017, 4-501.12, p. 561) 
“For example, equipment in disrepair, such as a cutting board with deep grooves/cuts, makes effective 
cleaning difficult or impossible, and thereby could introduce a bacterial hazard onto food that comes into 
contact with the board.” (Federal Food Code – 2017, Sec. D, p.738.)  
And finally, “Microorganisms may be transmitted from a food to other foods by utensils, cutting boards, 
thermometers, or other food-contact surfaces.” (Federal Food Code – 2017, 40602.11, p.567) 
 
Furthermore, injection molded cutting boards are too soft to be effectively resurfaced.  During the 
process, the shavings melt back onto the surface of the board.  High density, extruded HDPE can be 
resurfaced many times and it maintains its resistance to warping in hot, ware washing machines. The 
food code even states: 
“Surfaces such as cutting blocks and boards that are subject to scratching and scoring shall be 
resurfaced if they can no longer be effectively cleaned and SANITIZED, or discarded if they are not 
capable of being resurfaced.” (Federal Food Code – 2017, 4-501.12, p. 165).  I find it hard to believe that 
NSF and the FDA purposely chose to give the same certification to injection molded plastic as it gave 
extruded, HDPE.  How did this happen? 
 
In my research, I came across some manufacturers of wooden cutting boards claiming that one small 
article referenced in the Federal Food Code - 2017 edition (and previous editions) is the procuring cause 
that government mandated the switch from wood to plastic cutting boards. This article is referenced under 
section 4-101.17 Wood, Use Limitation on p. 365 of 767.  It is the second reference entitled, Agricultural 
Research Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture. ARS Affirms Plastic Cutting Board Policies. Food 
Chemical News, December 6, 1993, pp. 56-57.  They claim that it has been scrubbed from all records or 
never really existed.  I have searched for it myself and enlisted the help of my local librarian and we were 
unable to find it.  I have brought this to the attention of Mr. Allen Rose, NSF Standards Development 
Liaison.  To date, I have not been able to find a copy. I find it very curious that an article cited as 
supporting evidence for switching from wood to plastic cutting boards has seemingly disappeared but, 
continues to be cited. It should be noted that in an article by the scientists largely recognized as the 
leaders in cutting board research, NESE O. AK, DEAN O. CLIVER, and CHARLES W. KASPAR (1994) Cutting 
Boards of Plastic and Wood Contaminated Experimentally with Bacteria. Journal of Food Protection: January 1994, 
Vol. 57, No. 1, pp. 16-22. In their conclusion, they state, “These results do not support the often-heard assertion that 
Plastic cutting boards are more sanitary than wood.” 
 
My only (ethical) conclusion as to how this happened is that the NSF Standards and associated safety 
tests only evaluated the product prior to real world use. (NSF/ANSI 2 -2018, Sec. 6, NSF/ANSI 51 – 2017, 
Secs. 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12) After reviewing these standards, I feel the tests did not consider or attempt to 
emulate the manufacturers or the consumers intended use. In other words, if these cutting boards had 
been evaluated after being used for standard intervals of time, in real kitchens, using universally accepted 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

scientific methodologies, they would never have been approved. In fact, they likely wouldn’t have even 
passed the “commonsense” test!   
 
I feel strongly that the committee should consider adding a new standard that would require real world 
observations of every certified product to ensure that the standards that were tested and the 
methodologies used accurately anticipated the application and use of the product in real world.  I think 
that if I had access to the tests used to grant NSF approval for injection molded, cutting boards that I 
could easily identify ways in which the tests were flawed. I think that the real-world examples of injection 
molded cutting that I have brought as exhibits, prove beyond any reasonable doubt that they should have 
never been approved as primary food contact surfaces for slicing, dicing and chopping food on.   
 
Before concluding, I have an ethical and moral obligation to provide full-disclosure and transparency, It 
would be easy to accuse me of having a fundamental conflict of interest. After all, I am in the business of 
resurfacing and selling extruded, food grade High Density Polyethylene (HDPE). This material is also 
NSF/ANSI and FDA approved.  We have developed a proprietary technique for shaving off the top layer 
of rough, porous and uncleanable layer of plastic. We proudly restore the boards to like new condition 
meeting all the Food Code regulations.  All the contaminated material that we remove during resurfacing 
must be discarded in the landfill because it is considered a “biohazard” by all the plastic recycling 
companies.  But it is about 1/5 of the material volume when compared to every injection molded board 
that is discarded.  Furthermore, our shavings are deposited in a compactable form that greatly reduces its 
comparative volume. We humorously and sincerely claim that we are trying to save the world one cutting 
board at a time.  However, even though extruded HDPE is much more durable, safe and it can be 
resurfaced, it also arguably fails to fully meet the intent of the relevant standards. I feel, that it is in the 
best interest of public health and safety, if all plastic being used as primary food contact/ cutting surfaces 
was eliminated.  I am actively trying to find an existing replacement material or help to invent a new 
material that could provide a truly safe, primary food contact and cutting surface. If you know someone 
that has mad material design skills, let me know. I invite you to visit our website at 
www.cuttingboardresurfacing.com to better understand what we do.  I can also be reached for questions, 
comments or suggestions at cuttingboardresurfacing@gmail.com . 
 
Therefore, if this committee agrees with my recommendation, that all injection molded cutting boards 
should be recalled, the manufacturing halted and the uncontaminated inventory should be recycled and 
repurposed, it would stand to reason that extruded plastic could possibly meet the same fate.  Of course, 
this would put me out of business, and I would sadly and gladly be forced to close my company. I hope 
that you agree that this potential and likely sacrifice essentially eliminates all potential conflicts of interest. 
So, who wants to join me for dinner tonight?   
 
 
 
 
 
Name:  Jeff Veden 
Company: Cutting Board Resurfacing, LLC 
Telephone Number: 818 427-6116 E-mail: CuttingBoardResurfacing@gmail.com 
 
Please submit to:  Al Rose, arose@nsf.org 
 
Please scroll down for pictures. 
 

http://www.cuttingboardresurfacing.com/
mailto:cuttingboardresurfacing@gmail.com


 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 
 

 
 
Straight edge placed across an injection molded hand board. Can you see the 
gap demonstrating the volume of missing micro-plastic that has worn away 
during normal use after just a few months?  New this board weighed 
approximately 7.5 lbs. Used, it weighed just over 6 lbs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This is the other side of the same board above showing about the same amount 
of wear but with strips of missing material. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 
 
 

 
A “non-slip” rubber pad that has been cut with a knife.  Part of the pad has 
already fallen off.  These pads do little to hold the board in place because most 
stainless steel countertops have been dented or are not perfectly flat. Meanwhile, 
where is this material going? The NSF logo is visible in the bottom right corner. 
 
 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 

 
 

This closeup picture of shows a missing chunk of injection molded plastic that 
has chipped off.  Deep cut marks demonstrate how this material begins to 
decompose.  Sanitizer is unable to penetrate to the bottom of the cut mark so 
micro-organisms thrive below the surface. 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 
 

 
 
 
Small pieces of injection molded plastic sloughing off a brand new injection 
molded plastic cutting board after only a few passes of the knife. 
 
 

 
 
Another example of missing material from a “non-slip” pad. 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 
 
 

 
 
A deep cut with small pieces of plastic just waiting to enter the food chain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Joint Committee Information Paper 

 
 
 

 
 
It does not take long before an injection molded cutting boards begins to slough 
off plastic and is impossible to properly clean and sanitize.  



 
 

TAB SET H 
 

Other New Business 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



TAB SET I 
Meeting Wrap Up 

 
 
 
 
Next meeting date proposed for August 19-20, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	010 - Cover FE
	Joint Committee on
	Food Equipment Meeting
	August 21 & 22, 2019

	015 - Rules of Order; 08-22-2019
	020 - Tab 1, Meeting Agenda FE
	TAB A
	Joint Committee on Food Equipment Meeting
	Wednesday & Thursday, August 21 & 22, 2019

	030 - JCFE Meeting Summary - 2018-08-22 - Final Draft
	041 - Link to Standards Development Process Video
	050 - JCFE Roster Annex 2019-07-26
	Annex JCFE

	055 - Members voting on all ballots
	056 - 2018-2019 JCFE Roster & Voting Parcipitation
	057 - Joint Committe Application Form - FE - 2018 4836-1061-5673 v.2
	060 - 75th anniversary timeline-history with pictures - 2019-07-31
	065 - STD-1-1969-04-00
	070 - Tab Set C - Existing Business
	TAB SET C

	075 - 2018 Annual Meeting Action Items
	080 - Issue Papers received and assigned since previous JC meeting
	090 - Tab Set D - Task Group Updates
	TAB SET D

	100 - Tab D1 - Standard 2
	TAB D1

	101 - Standard 2 Task Group Update 2019 August R4
	Open Issue Papers:
	Closed Issue Papers:

	101.5 - Joint Committee - Task Group Chair Update Form - TG on Food Shields  - 081419
	Open Issue Papers:

	102 - Joint Committee - Figures & Diagrams Task Group Chair Update 2019
	Open Issue Papers:

	110 - Tab D2 - Standard 3
	TAB D2

	111 - Joint Committee - Task Group Chair Update Form - J Hipp - 2019
	Open Issue Papers:

	120 - Tab D3 - Standard 4
	TAB D3

	121 - Joint Committee - Task Group Chair Update Form - TG on HFE, NSF 4 - BRANIA
	Open Issue Papers:

	140 - Tab D4 - Standard 7
	TAB D4

	141 - 2019-JCFE-TG Update
	Open Issue Papers:

	145 - CDC Vessel Sanitation Presentation
	146 - FE JC Reception - 2019
	Reception at�Old German

	150 - Tab D5 - Standard 12
	TAB D5

	160 - Tab D6 - Standard 25
	TAB D6

	161 - Joint Committee - Task Group Chair Update Form - TG on Vending Machines - DJNegandhi
	Open Issue Papers:

	170 - Tab D7 - Standard 51
	TAB D7

	171 - Joint Committee - Task Group Chair Update on Materials
	Open Issue Papers:

	180 - Tab D9 - TG Reports having no action since previous F2F
	TAB D9

	181 - Joint Committee - Task Group Chair Update Form - TG on NSF 5 - CHAIR
	Open Issue Papers:

	182 - 20190711_JC_TG_Dispenser_Comm_Report
	Open Issue Papers:

	183 - Joint Committee - Air Curtain Task Group Chair Update 2019-2
	Open Issue Papers:

	190 - NAFEM Presentation
	250 - Tab Set F - New Issue Papers and Interpretation Requests
	TAB SET F

	260 - Tab Set F1 - Issue Paper FE-2019-05 - Section 5.4 Cover Requirements
	TAB F1

	261 - FE-2019-05 - Section 5.4 Cover Requirements
	Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be considered by the Committee. Reference as approp...

	270 - Tab Set F2 - FE-2019-06 - Slotted Fasteners in Marine Equipment
	TAB F2

	271 - FE-2019-06 - Slotted Fasteners in Marine Equipment
	Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be considered by the Committee. Reference as approp...

	280 - Tab Set F3 - Issue Paper FE-2019-08 - NOTE in 5.1.4
	TAB F3

	281 - FE-2019-08 - NOTE in 5.1.4, including support documents
	FE-2019-08 - NOTE in 5.1.4
	Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be considered by the Committee. Reference as approp...
	1) ANTE-FACT
	2) PRODUCT DESCRIPTION
	3) EFFECTS OF WATER/HUMIDITY IN CONTACT WITH NUTELLA
	4) FERRERO EXPERIENCE
	5) CONCLUSIONS

	ICMSF - MICROORG. IN FOODS 6 extract
	COPERTINA
	ESTRATTO LIBRO MICRO
	BIBLIO


	290 - Tab Set F4 - Issue Paper FE-2019-09 - Definition for Potentially Hazard Foods
	TAB F4

	291 - FE-2019-09 - Definition for Potentially Hazard Foods
	Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be considered by the Committee. Reference as approp...

	300 - Tab Set F5 - Issue Paper FE-2019-10 - Definition for Sheets
	TAB F5

	301 - FE-2019-10 - Definition for Sheets
	Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be considered by the Committee. Reference as approp...

	310 - Tab Set F6 - FE-2019-11 - Casters
	TAB F6

	311 - FE-2019-11 - Casters
	FE-2019-11 - Casters, Part 1
	FE-2019-12 - Casters, Part 2

	320 - Tab Set F7 - Information Paper - Surface Cleanability
	TAB F7

	321 - Joint Committee Information Paper - Std 51-D.Negandhi
	Brief statement of information provided:

	322 - Surface Characteristics
	Surface Characteristics
	Surface Cleanability
	Surface Finish
	Surface Finish (SF)
	Surface Roughness
	Hardness
	Hardness
	Porosity
	Summary

	323 - FE-2019-04 - Surface Cleanability
	Joint_Committee_Issue_Paper_51_Surface Cleanability
	Provide a brief background statement indicating the cause and nature of concern, the impacts identified relevant to public health, public understanding, etc, and any other reason why the issue should be considered by the Committee. Reference as approp...

	Cleanability - JC History
	11-02 JC
	11-97 JC Minutes
	7-95 JC Minutes
	12-95 JC Minutes
	11-94 JC p1
	11-94 JC p2
	11-91 JC
	5-90 JC


	340 - Tab Set F9 - Information Paper - Plastic Cutting Boards
	TAB F8

	341 - Information Paper - Plastic Cutting Boards
	As the President of Cutting Board Resurfacing, LLC, I work with every brands of NSF approved, plastic cutting boards found in commercial kitchens.  There are 2 primary types of plastic cutting boards being used: 1) Extruded HDPE and 2) Injection Molde...
	Brief statement of information provided:
	To the best of my ability, I have attempted reference the most relevant NSF standards. All these standards should be familiar to this audience.  However, I have also included the textual references for most of the relevant Federal Food Code -2017 regu...
	As will be demonstrated in the pictures presented and the actual samples that I have brought with me, it should be clear that microscopic to large pieces of injection molded cutting boards are constantly and consistently “becoming a component of our f...
	Recently, microplastic waste has been making headlines. It is being found in every ecosystem that has been tested (ie. Deepest parts of the oceans, rivers, streams, on the highest mountains, in the atmosphere and everywhere in between). This is unacce...
	Consider this, the average 18”x24”x.5” hand board weighs 7.5 lbs. This is equal to 611 grocery bags or 8,400 single use plastic straws!  Given recent efforts to ban plastic bags and straws, it stands to reason that if these facts were common knowledge...
	Regular, daily wear quickly creates a surface that is no longer “SMOOTH” or “EASILY CLEANABLE”. This injection molded material is easily scratched and scored by repeated knife cuts. Pits and chips regularly develop and can be easily observed with the ...
	Furthermore, injection molded cutting boards are too soft to be effectively resurfaced.  During the process, the shavings melt back onto the surface of the board.  High density, extruded HDPE can be resurfaced many times and it maintains its resistanc...


	750 - Tab Set H - Other New Business
	TAB SET H

	800 - Tab Set I - Wrap Up
	TAB SET I




